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1 – Review of operations at 30 june 2013
 

 
Crédit Agricole CIB business 
review and financial results 
 
 
 

���� ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL ENVIRONMENT 
 
 
 
 
The firm commitment given by Mario Draghi, President of the European Central Bank (ECB), to do whatever it 
takes to keep the euro zone intact, and the September 2012 announcement of the OMT (Outright Monetary 
Transactions) programme of unlimited bond repurchases subject to strict conditions, marked a turning point in the 
sovereign debt crisis, helping to stabilise the markets. The underlying contraction in risk premiums in the bond 
markets continued during the first half of 2013 despite a series of events triggering uncertainty and volatility. 
 
In February, the results of the Italian elections reflected the country’s fragmented political landscape and its 
governability issue with neither of the two chambers having a majority. Given this political deadlock, the markets 
reacted immediately, but perhaps less violently than could have been feared. After weeks of prevarication, Enrico 
Letta, the Democratic Party’s number two, was asked to form a broad coalition government; this solution went 
down well with the markets, which gave the news a warm welcome. Even the chaotic handling of Cyprus’ financial 
difficulties in late March – leading to a costly rescue package (17 billion euros, i.e. 100% of the country’s GDP), an 
enforced contribution by large depositors and the liquidation of the country’s second-largest bank – did not trigger 
the contagion which was highly feared.  
 
Conversely, the economic situation continued to worsen during the first quarter. Core European countries were not 
left unscathed by the doom and gloom, with France officially sliding into recession (quarter-on-quarter contraction 
of 0.2%) for the second time in less than five years, and growth stalling in Germany (quarter-on-quarter growth of 
just 0.1%). Peripheral countries experienced another contraction (0.6% in Italy and 0.5% in Spain). In the euro 
zone, the crisis-busting strategy of austerity to trim the debt burden, and of wage cost reductions to restore 
competitiveness, hardly seems conducive to sparking a recovery. Domestic growth drivers are set to remain 
persistently depressed given the backdrop of high unemployment, disinflation and perhaps even deflation in wages 
and higher tax pressure. Granted, the second quarter growth figures were slightly firmer, but still they do not add 
up to much more than stabilisation in the economy at a low level.  
 
Signs of a recovery are more tangible in the United States, with employment and consumer spending providing the 
economic impetus during the first half. Ben Bernanke, Chairman of the US Federal Reserve, announced in June his 
intention to taper the Fed’s asset purchase programme. He is betting that activity is sufficiently brisk in the US to 
withstand the gradual withdrawal of the two crutches – fiscal and monetary – that have propped up growth during 
the crisis. Judging by the markets’ reaction – a massive wave of sales, an across-the-board decline in asset prices 
and a sudden surge in bond yields – they seem hostile to the very idea that the liquidity taps, which have fuelled 
them, may be turned off. 
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� CONSOLIDATED RESULTS 
 
The information presented below for the second half of 2012 are pro forma taking into account the new 
organization of the bank as of July 2012, the IFRS 5 treatment of CA Cheuvreux and CLSA, the impact of the 
reclassification of the issuer spread from the Capital markets and investment banking to the Corporate center 
segment and restated of the impacts of the adjustment plan. 

 
 
Condensed income statement 
 
 

€ million
Ongoing 
Activities

CPM and 

CVA/DVA (1)

Discon-
tinuing 

operations
Total CIB

Private 
banking

Corporate 

center(2) CACIB

Change          
S1-13/S1-12 

(3)

Net banking income 2,090 (24) 103 2,169 372 (393) 2,148 -8%

Operating expenses (1,217) (86) (1,303) (268) (1,571) -4%

Gross operating income 873 (24) 17 866 104 (393) 577 -12%

Cost of risk (187) (29) (216) (4) (220) 63%

Income from equity affiliates 69 69 69 -14%

Gain/(losses) on other assets 3 3 3 -75%

Pre-tax income 758 (24) (12) 722 100 (393) 429 -22%

Corporate Income tax (207) 13 4 (190) (19) 127 (82) -24%

Net income from discontinued or held-for-
sale operations

(4) (4) (4) ns

Net income 547 (11) (8) 528 81 (266) 343 -21%

Non-controlling interests 6 (3) 3 7 10 -25%

Net income, Group share 541 (11) (5) 525 74 (266) 333 -21%
(1) CPM and CVA/DVA: loan hedges, DVA impact and CVA change in accounting estimate respectively for  +€15 million and -€39 million in net banking income 
(2) Debt revaluation for -€393m in net banking income
(3) On the ongoing activities scope.  

After a year 2012 characterised by the transformation of Credit Agricole CIB’s model and the deleveraging efforts, 
the first half 2013 illustrates the new bank’s organisation making CACIB a “debt house”, refocused on a strategic 
client portfolio and on a geographical network concentrated on its excellence activities. 

The economical and financial context is still reflecting persistent tensions, especially in Europe and emerging 
countries, while a positive trend is progressively taking place in the United States. Markets are weaving between 
dynamic and tense periods (Spain and Italy issues in the first quarter, renewed market volatility and rising of long-
term interest rates supported by announcements about gradual withdrawal of monetary easing of the Fed…)  

The first half year depicts a good resistance of the business lines with a net banking income of ongoing activities 
standing at €2,090 million, slightly decreasing by -8% this half year. 

In a still unstable market environment, capital markets and investment banking are resilient. Investment banking 
realized good performances on the period thanks for example to Primary capital markets activities. 

Despite the adjustment plan effects in 2012 and the efforts made in terms of liquidity, financing banking maintains 
its position on its core activities. 

Operating expenses decreased by -4%, demonstrating an efficient control of costs. 

The cost of risk of ongoing activities, even if higher than a very low first half 2012, does not present any significant 
individual provisions. 

Net income Group share of ongoing activities amounts to €541 million, down by 21% compared to the first half of 
2012. 
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� RESULTS BY BUSINESS LINE 
  
 
 

Financing 
 

 

€ million

S1-13 (*) S1-12 (*)
Change(*)        

S1-13/S1-
12

Change(*)        

S1-13/ S1-12 
at constant 

rate

Net banking income 1,004 1,104 -9% -9%

Operating expenses (441) (460) -4% -3%

Gross operating income 563 644 -13%

Cost of risk (171) (111) 54%

Income from equity affiliates 69 80 -14%

Gain/(losses) on other assets 3 1 x3

Pre-tax income 464 614 -24%

Corporate Income tax (114) (174) -34%

Net income 350 440 -20%

Non-controlling interests 5 5 0%

Net income, Group share 345 435 -21%

(*) Restated fo r the impact o f loan hedges on Net banking Income fo r respectively +€ 15 million and +€ 81 million fo r S1-2013 and S1-2012 and restated o f the impacts o f the 
adjustment plan fo r -€ 70 million for  S1-2012

 

Lower revenues from financing activities (-9%/S1-12), still dampened by the deleveraging effects, depict an 
evolution in accordance with the decrease of liquidity consumption (which amounts to 10%). 

In this context, revenues from structured finance activities decreased slightly by -2%. In an environment of 
pressure over margins, the revenues of commercial banking activities decreased by -9%. Nonetheless, the deal 
flow is on a positive path at the end of the quarter. 

Costs declined by 4%, in relation with the staff decreases and the cost-efficiency programs. 

Syndication activities confirmed their good positioning. Crédit Agricole CIB held its position as France’s leading 
bookrunner and stands at the second position in the EMEA zone and Western Europe (Thomson Financial). 

The cost of risk increased compared to a very low first half 2012. 

Net income Group share, restated for loan hedges, amounted to €345 million, down by 21% compared to 2012. 
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Capital markets and Investment banking 
 
 

€ million

S1-13(*) S1-12 (*)
Change     

S1-13/S1-

12(*)

Change       
S1-13/S1-

12(*) at 

constant 
rate

Net banking income 1,086 1,157 -6% -3%

Operating expenses (776) (812) -4% -1%

Gross operating income 310 345 -10%

Cost of risk (16) (4) x4

Gain/(losses) on other assets 0 11 ns

Pre-tax income 294 352 -16%

Corporate Income tax (93) (100) -7%

Net income from discontinued or held-for-sale 
operations

(4) 0 ns

Net income 197 252 -22%

Non-controlling interests 1 3 -67%

Net income, Group share 196 249 -21%

(*) Restated for CVA/DVA for S1-13 (-€ 39m in net banking income)  and for impact o f the adjustement plan for S1-12 (-€ 172m in net income of discontinuing activities).

 

 

In a still unstable market environment, notably affected by the Fed announcements concerning its monetary policy, 
market activities resisted well with a limited decrease of their revenues by -3% at constant rate. 

The Global Markets segment is particularly boosted by rates activities which benefit from a good commercial 
activity and by stable revenues of the Securitization business line. 

Investment banking revenues benefit from a high commissions level and register good performances, particularly 
in primary equity activities, with for example the disposal of Lagardère’s shares in EADS in which Crédit Agricole 
CIB intervened as advisor.  

CACIB progresses from the sixth to the first rank as all euro bonds issues bookrunner and also holds the first rank 
as securitization bookrunner in Europe ABCP (Thomson Financial). 

Net income Group share amounts to +€196 million, decreasing by 21% compared to 2012. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 8



1 – Review of operations at 30 june 2013
 

 
Discontinuing operations 
 
 
 

€ million 
S1-13 S1-12(*)

Change        
S1-13/S1-

12(*)

Net banking income 103 67 54%

Operating expenses (86) (158) -46%

Gross operating income 17 (91) ns

Cost of risk (29) (55) -47%

Pre-tax income (12) (146) -92%

Corporate Income Tax 4 46 -91%

Net income (8) (100) -92%

Non-controlling interests (3) (20) -85%

Net income, Group share (5) (80) -94%

(*) Restated fo r the impact o f the adjustment plan: -€ 363 million in net banking income and -€ 39 million in cost of risk.

 

The contribution of discontinuing operations keeps on reducing compared to 2012 and its cost on the half year is 
non-significant, with a Net income Group share at -€5 million. 

 
The first half of 2013 was characterized by a continued reduction of exposure facilitated by favorable market 
conditions and a relative renewed appetite of some investors. Net banking income of €103 million recorded in the 
first half of 2013 is primarily related to gains on assets as ABS and ABS’ CDOs as well as equity derivatives assets. 

Costs dropped by -46%, linked to staff cuts and the progressive discontinuation of the equity derivatives and 
commodities activities. 

Additional information about the nature of main expositions is presented in the part entitled « Specific risks 
(Financial Stability Board format) » on page 18.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 9



1 – Review of operations at 30 june 2013
 

 
Private Banking 
   

€ million 
S1-13 S1-12

Change           
S1-13/S1-12

Change         
S1-13/S1-12 
at constant 

rate

Net banking income 372 346 8% 9%

Operating expenses (268) (261) 3% 4%

Gross operating income 104 85 22%

Cost of risk (4) (4) 0%

Pre-tax income 100 81 23%

Corporate Income tax (19) (15) 27%

Net income 81 66 23%

Non-controlling interests 7 5 40%

Net income, Group share 74 61 21%

 

Thanks to the improvements regarding treasury remuneration and to more buoyant markets for brokerage, private 
banking activities income progressed by +8%. 

Assets under management at the end of June 2013 amount to €93.3 billion compared to €94 billion at the end of 
December 2012.   

Net income Group share amounts to €74 million, increased by 21% compared to S1-2012. 

 
 Corporate center 
 

€ million 
S1-13 S1-12 

 Change       
S1-13/S1-

12

Net banking income (393) 225 ns

Operating expenses 0 (1) ns

Gross operating income (393) 224 ns

Cost of risk 0 0 ns

Gain/(losses) on other assets 0 4 ns

Pre-tax income (393) 228 ns

Corporate Income tax 127 (81) ns

Net income (266) 147 ns

Non-controlling interests 0 0 ns

Net income, Group share (266) 147 ns
 

To ensure consistency between the reporting of the Group Crédit Agricole S.A. and internal management data, 
made for assessing the performance of each business line of the Group, the impact and 
changes in issuer spread of Credit Agricole CIB have been, from 2013, 
reclassified in the Corporate center segment (instead of being classified in Capital markets and investment 
banking). 

 

Apart from this impact, there is no other significant element taking place during the 2013 first half.  
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� FINANCIAL STRUCTURE 
 

Shareholders’ equity 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………  

At 30 June 2013, Crédit Agricole CIB’s  shareholders’ equity – Group share stands at €15.2 billion. The change in 

the first half 2013 was due to a +€0.3 billion result taken into account. 

 
Related parties agreements 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 

The main related parties agreements contracted as of 30 June 2013 are described in note 2.3 of the notes to  the 
condensed interim consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2013. 

 
European Solvency ratio (CRD) 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 

The table below sets out the European CRD solvency ratio and details the risks faced by the Crédit Agricole CIB 
Group measured on a credit-risk-equivalent basis (after counterparty weighting), along with the level of regulatory 
capital, calculated in accordance with the applicable regulations.  

 

30.06.2013 31.12.2012

18.2 17.9

15.1 14.3

0.1 0.1

5.2 5.1

(1.1) (1.2)

(1.1) (0.4)

1.1 1.2

0.0 0.0

(2.2) (2.4)

(1.1) (1.2)

(1.1) (1.2)

(1.7) (1.7)

including securitisation exposures weighted at 1,250% (0.5) (0.7)

17.1 16.7

17.1 16.7

13.5 13.3

0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0

85.0 87.1

15.7 10.9

14.4 13.9

115.1 111.9

11.7% 11.9%

14.8% 14.9%

14.8% 14.9%

TIER 3 CAPITAL

Total available capital

including stakes in credit and banking institutions amounting to more than 10% of 

their capital or which provide significant influence over these institutions (at 100%)

Core Tier 1 ratio

Tier 1 ratio 

Including

Tier 1 [A+C]

    Including Core Tier 1

Tier 2 [B+D]

Deductions from Tier 2 capital [D]

Overall solvency ratio

Credit risks

Market risks

Operational risks

TOTAL RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS

Non controlling interests excluding hybrid securities

Hybrid securities included in Tier 1 capital as agreed by the French Prudential 
Supervisory Authority (ACP)

TIER 2 CAPITAL [B]

TIER 3 CAPITAL

DEDUCTIONS FROM TIER I CAPITAL AND TIER 2 CAPITAL

Deductions from Tier 1 capital [C]

Deductions from Tier 1 capital including the intangible assets

Other deductions

€  billion

TIER 1 CAPITAL [A]

Equity capital and reserves, Group share

 

 
At 30 June 2013, the Crédit Agricole CIB Group’s solvency ratio and Tier 1 ratio were 14.8%.  
 
At 31 December 2012, the Crédit Agricole CIB Group’s overall solvency ratio and the Tier 1 ratio was at 14.9% 

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 11



1 – Review of operations at 30 june 2013
 

 
Change in risk-weighted assets  
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

Basel II risk-weighted assets amounted to €115.1 billion at 30 June 2013, representing an increase of €3.2 billion 
compared to those at the end of 2012. 
 
The increase in the 2013 first half is mainly due to : 
  
• Credit risks decrease by -€2.4 billion excluding currency effect notably because of the decrease of volumes in 
financing activities; 
• Currency effect on credit risks estimated at +€0.3 billion; 
• Market risks increase (+€4.8 billion);  
• Operational risk increase (+€0.5 billion). 
  
The table below shows change in Crédit Agricole CIB’s risk weighted assets in the first half of 2013: 

Amount (€ billion)

Risk weighted assets at 31 december 2012 111.9

Foreign exchange effect (USD) 0.3

Updating of models and methodological developments (0.2)

Organic change (1) 3.1

Risk weighted assets at 30 June 2013 115.1

(1) Change in exposures and credit migration
 

 

Change in regulatory capital 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Tier 1 capital totalled €17.1 billion at 30 June 2013, up by+ €0.3 billion compared with December 2012. 

This evolution was due to several factors: 

• The currency effect of €0.1 billion, with no impact on the ratio that is protected against currency changes thanks 
to the maintaining at the numerator of a USD part, similar to the one calculated from the elements of the 
denominator. 

• The decrease of prudential deductions and others (+0.2 billion euros).

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 12



1 – Review of operations at 30 june 2013
 

 

Reconciliation of accounting and regulatory capital 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

Detail Total

EQUITY, GROUP SHARE (CARRYING AMOUNT) 15,158

Minority and assimilated interests

Non controlling interests (carrying amount) 521

Less preferred shares reclassified as "other components of Tier 1 
capital" (420)

Regulatory adjustments to Tier 1 capital

Expected pay-out (316)

Other equity instruments 0

Goodwill and intangible assets (1,118)

Unrealised gains/ losses on cash flow hedge (360)

Unrealised gains/ losses on available-for-sale financial assets (156)

Expected losses (50% of the total on Tier 1) (7)

Deduction of securitisation exposures (50% of the total on Tier 1) (249)

Deductions in respect of investments in credit or financial institions 
(50% Tier 1) (873)

Other regulatory adjustments (289)

Other component on Tier 1 capital

Hybrid equity instruments 4,756

Preferred shares 420

Total Tier 1 capital 17,067

Tier 2 funds
Items, securities and borrowings complying with Articles 4b and 4c 
(perpetual) of Regulation 90-02 30

Securities and borrowings complying with article 4d (fixed term) of 
Regulation 90-02 642

Regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital

Regulatory adjustments to other equity instruments 
(1)

85

Surplus of collective impairment expense in relation to expected losses 325

Deduction of securitisation exposures (50% of the total on Tier 2) (249)

Expected losses (50% of the total on Tier 2) (7)

Deduction in respect of investments in credit or financial institutions 
(50% Tier 2) (873)

Other regulatory adjustments 47

Total Tier 2 capital 0

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE CAPITAL 17,067

(1)  Regulatory adjustment to Upper Tier 2 capital of 45% of unrealised gains on available-for-sale equity securities

€ million 30/06/2013
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Risk management 
 
 
The Crédit Agricole CIB Group is exposed to the following main risks: 
• credit risks; 
• market risks; 
• structural asset and liability management risks (overall interest rate risk, currency risk, liquidity risk); 
• specific risks presented in the format  recommended by the Financial Stability Forum; 
• operational, legal risks  and non-compliance risks. 

 

This  information on these categories of risks is part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements of 
Crédit Agricole CIB at 30 June 2013. 
 
The organisation, the principles and the tools of management and surveillance of risks are described in detail in the 
2012 shelf registration document, in the chapter dedicated to risk factors (page 112 to 137). 
 
The risks description and main evolutions noticed in the first half of 2013 are presented below, excluding the 
sovereign risks in euro zone considered as significant and which evolutions are presented in the note 5.6 of the 
financial statement. 
 

 

� CREDIT RISKS 
 
 
Principles, methodologies and devices of credit risk measurement are described from pages 113 to 122 of the 2012 
shelf-registration document. 

 
 

Scope 
The credit risk scope includes commitments excluding derivatives and securities portfolios. 
It is to be noted that exposures with counterparties belonging to Crédit Agricole Group are not reported in the 
below tables. 
 
At 30 June 2013, breakdown by geographical zone and by economic sector of loans granted to customers 
and banks by Crédit Agricole CIB (€281 billion versus €291 billion at 31 December 2012) are divided as 
follows: 
 
 

Breakdown of counterparty risks by geographical  zone 
 

In percentage 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Rest of Western European countries 30.4% 29.4%
France 21.5% 25.4%
North America 20.7% 19.0%
Asia (excluding Japan) 10.6% 10.4%
Africa and Middle-east 5.5% 5.5%
Japan 4.4% 3.5%
Rest of Europe 3.5% 3.7%
Latin America 3.3% 3.0%
Other and supranational 0.1% 0.1%
Source: risk data (on- and off-balance sheet o f customer and central banks commercial 
commitments).
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Breakdown of risks by economic sector 
 

In percentage 30.06.2013 31.12.2012 

Central banks 23.5% 25.3% 

Energy 16.0% 15.7% 

Miscellaneous 12.4% 11.8% 

Shipping 5.9% 5.9% 

Real estate 4.4% 4.5% 

Aerospace 4.4% 4.3% 

Heavy industry 3.4% 3.4% 

Other financial (non-banks) 3.4% 2.5% 

Construction 3.1% 3.1% 

Production and distribution of consumer goods 3.0% 3.2% 

Automobile 2.8% 2.6% 

Telecoms 2.6% 2.6% 

Insurance 2.3% 2.5% 

Other transport 2.2% 2.2% 

Other industry 2.0% 2.0% 

Food 1.6% 1.5% 

Non-commercial services/Public sector/Local authorities 1.5% 1.4% 

Tourism, hotels and restaurants 1.4% 1.3% 

Healthcare and pharmaceuticals 1.3% 1.3% 

IT/Technologies 1.1% 1.0% 

Media/Publishing 0.8% 0.7% 

Wood, paper and packaging 0.5% 0.4% 

Utilities 0.4% 0.4% 

Source: risk data (on- and off-balance sheet of customer and central banks commercial commitments). 

 
 
Exposure of loans and debts by economic agent 
The breakdown of depreciated loans and debts by economic agent is presented in note 5.3 of the financial 

statements. 

 
Cost of risk 
The cost of risk of Crédit Agricole CIB and its main movements are presented in note 3.8 of the consolidated 

financial statements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 15



1 – Review of operations at 30 june 2013
 

 

 

 

� MARKET RISKS 
 

The management framework and the methodology of measurement and supervision of market risks are indicated 
in pages 122 to 126 of the 2012 shelf-registration document. 

 

 
Risk management 
 
�Methodology and measurement system 
 

No material changes occurred in the methodology of measurement of VaR during the first half of 2013. 
 

 

Exposure (Value at Risk) 
 

�Crédit Agricole CIB regulatory VaR during the first half of 2013 
 

€ million 28/06/2013 Minimum Maximum Average S1 2013 
Interest rate 8 5 11 8 

Equity 1 1 3 2 

Forex 2 1 3 2 

Credit 10 4 11 7 

Compensation -6       

Crédit Agricole CIB 15 6 18 12 

 
 
Regulatory VaR at the end of the first half 2013 amounts to €15 million, inferior to the limit of VaR settled 
at €30 million. 
 
During the first half 2013, the evolution of the Crédit Agricole CIB regulatory VaR was characterized by a change of 
compensation effects (credit and rate scopes). It is to be noticed that the regulatory VaR has evolved between 6m€ 
and 18 m€, to be compared with a limit settled at 30 m€. 
 

The activities present low VaR levels, decreasing compared to 2012. 

 

�Daily change in Crédit Agricole CIB VaR 
 

� Regulatory VaR – 2013 first half (in € million) 
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SVaR exposure 
 

�Crédit Agricole CIB stressed regulatory VaR during the first half of 2013 
In  acccordance with the regulatory requirements, the SVaR (Stressed Value at Risk) is produced on a weekly 

basis. 
 
The SVaR is not uncorrelated of the VaR and also stands at low levels. 

 
�  Crédit Agricole CIB VaR and stressed VaR – 2013 first half (in € million) 
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� SENSITIVE EXPOSURES BASED ON THE FINANCIAL 
STABILITY BOARD RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
The following disclosures are made in accordance with the recommendations of the Financial Stability Board. They 
form an integral part of Crédit Agricole CIB’s consolidated financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2013 
and are covered by the Statutory auditors’ report on the interim financial information. 
 
Summary table of exposures 
 

Gross 
exposure

Discount
Collective 
reserve

Net 
exposure

Gross 
exposure

Discount
Net 

exposure

RMBS 449 (74) (47) 328 127 (78) 49

CMBS 81 (3) (22) 56 8 (1) 7

Unhedged super senior CDO 1,875 (1,222) (121) 532 1,173 (1,156) 17

Unhedged mezzanine CDO 74 (74) 0 602 (602) 0

Unhedged CLO 760 (24) (11) 725 224 (16) 208

Protections purchased from 
monolines

161 (109) 52

Protections purchased from 
CDPC

107 (22) 85

(1)  Loans and receivables to credit institutions and to customers - securities not traded in an active market (see note 5.3 to the consolidated financial statements).
(2)  Loans and receivables to customers - securities not traded in an active market (see note 5.3 to the consolidated financial statements).
(3)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - bonds and other fixed-income securities and derivatives (see note 5.1 to the consolidated financial statements). 
(4)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - derivatives (see note 5.1 to the consolidated financial statements). 

(2)

(3)

(4)

in € million
Accounting 
category

Assets under loans and receivables Assets at fair value

Accounting 
category

(1)
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Mortgage ABS 
 

in €  million

R M B S 31.12.2012 30.06.2013 31.12.2012 30.06.2013 31.12.2012 30.06.2013

R eco gnised under lo ans and receivables

Gross exposure 339 242 181 143 100 64

Discount* (161) (88) (32) (24) (26) (9)

N et  expo sure in millio n o f euro s 178 154 149 119 74 55

Gross exposure 109 85 40 37 6 5

Discount (97) (72) (5) (5) (1) (1)

N et  expo sure in millio n o f euro s 12 13 35 32 5 4

% underlying subprime on net exposure 95% 97%

AAA 5% 3%

AA 4% 3%

A 3% 4% 79% 100% 58% 82%

BBB 5% 3% 13% 18%

BB 3% 2% 21%

B 5% 2% 7%

CCC 3% 10%

CC 3% 3%

C 43% 22%

Not rated 26% 48% 22%

in €  million

C M B S 31.12.2012 30.06.2013 31.12.2012 30.06.2013 31.12.2012 30.06.2013

R eco gnised under lo ans and receivables

Net exposure* 25 23 68 33

Net exposure 5 5 3 2

* of which € 69m of collective reserves at 30 june 2013 compared with € 106m at 31 December 2012

R eco gnised under assets measured at  fair va lue

United-States United-Kingdo m Others

United-States United-Kingdo m Spain

R eco gnised under assets measured at  fair va lue

B reakdo wn o f gro ss expo sure, by rat ing

 
 

Purchases of RMBS and CMBS credit protections measured at fair value: 
• 30 June 2013 : gross exposure = €57 million;  fair value = €49 million. 
• 31 December 2012 : gross exposure = €93 million; fair value = €79 million 
Real-estate ABS measured at fair value are valued on the basis of data from external contributors. 
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Method used to measure super senior CDOs with US residential 
mortgages underlyings 
 
Super senior CDOs measured at fair value 
Discounts were calculated by applying a credit scenario to the underlying (mainly residential mortgages) of the 
ABSs making up each CDO. 
 
Final loss rates on continuing loans are : 
• adjusted according to the quality and origination date of each residential loan; 
• expressed as a percentage of nominal. This approach allows us to visualize our loss assumptions based on our 
risk remaining in the bank’s balance sheet.  
 

C lo sing date 2005 2006 2007

31.12.2012 50% 60% 60%

30.06.2013 50% 60% 60%

Loss rate on subprime produced in

 
Future cash flows are then discounted on the basis of a rate taking into account the market liquidity. 
 

Super senior CDOs measured at amortised cost 
Since the fourth quarter 2012, they are depreciated using the same methodology as the super senior CDOs 
measured at fair value, with the difference that the obtained future cash flows are discounted based on the 
effective interest rate at the date of reclassification. 
 

Unhedged super senior CDOs with US residential mortgages underlying 
 
At 30 June 2013, Crédit Agricole CIB net exposure on unhedged super senior CDOs with US residential mortgages 
underlying was €549 million (after a collective reserve of €121 million). 
 

Breakdown of super senior CDOs 
 

€ million  
Assets at fair 

value 
Assets in loans and 

receivables 

Nominal 1,173 1,875 

Discount 1,156 1,222 

Collective reserves   121 

Net value 17 532 

Net value at 31 December 2012 18 744 

Discount rate* 99% 72% 

Underlying     

% of underlying subprime assets produced before 2006 9% 30% 

% of underlying subprime assets produced in 2006 and 2007 31% 3% 

% of underlying Alt A assets 2% 6% 

% of underlying Jumbo assets 0% 3% 

*After inclusion of fully written down tranchees   
 
Other exposure at 30 June 2013 

in € million 
Nominal Discount 

Collective 
reserves 

Net 

Unhedged CLOs measured at fair value 224 (16)   208 

Unhedged CLOs recognised as loans and receivables 760 (24) (11) 725 

Unhedged mezzanine CDOs  measured at fair value 602 (602)   0 

Unhedged mezzanine CDOs recognised as loans and receivables* 74 (74)   0 
*Mezzanine CDOs tranches coming from the liquidation of a CDO formerly recognised as loans and receivables 
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Protections  on monolines at 30 June 2013 
 
 

US 
residential 

CDOs

Corporate 
CDO

CLO
Other 

underlyings

Gross notional amount of purchased protection 65 2,653 280 318 3,316

Gross notional amount of hedged items 65 2,653 280 318 3,316

Fair value of hedged items 41 2,651 264 199 3,155

Fair value of protection before value 
adjustments and hedges

24 2 16 119 161

Value adjsutments recognised on protection (1) (1) (15) (92) (109)

Residual exposure to counterparty risk 
on monolines

23 1 1 27 52

€ million 

Monolines to hedge :
Total protections 
purchased from 

monolines

 
 
 
 
Breakdown of net exposure to monolines at 30 June 2013* 
 
 

Baa2
71%

B+
2%

B3
12%

NR
15%

 
*The lowest rating from Standards & Poors or Moody’s in 30 June, 2013. 

 

 
 

Protections purchased from CDPC (Credit Derivative Product  Companies) 

At 30 June 2013, net exposure to CDPC was €85m (compared to €89m at 31 December 2012), mainly on 
corporate CDOs after a discount of €22m (compared to €48m at 31 December 2012). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Baa2: Assured Guaranted 
B+ : Radian 
B3: MBIA 
N/R: CIFG 
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� ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT - 
STRUCTURAL FINANCIAL RISKS 
 
 
The organisation, the framework and follow up of asset and liability management are described on pages 131 to 
135 of the 2012 shelf registration document. There were no significant changes since 31 December 2012. 
 
 

 Global interest-rate risks 
 
 
Crédit Agricole CIB exposure did not register any fundamental changes during the first half. 

Interest rate gaps in 30 June 2013 are detailed as follow and translate an exposure of the bank to a decrease of 
interest rates: 
 

€ billion 0 to 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 to 10 years 

Average gaps US Dollar -0.9 1.0 0.7 

Average gaps Euro and other currencies -2.2 0.1 0.2 

 
 

 Liquidity risk 
 
The methodological principles, management and follow up of liquidity risks did not register any significant evolution 
since 31 December 2012. 
 
As a reminder, at 31 december 2012, Crédit Agricole CIB liquidity coefficient amounted to 127%. 

 

 Exchange-rate risk 
 
 

The management policy, the follow up and the supervision of exchange-rate risks did not register any significant 
changes over the first half. 
 

 Rate and change risks hedging 
 
 
Within the framework of managing its financial risks, Crédit Agricole CIB uses instruments (interest-rate swaps and 
forex transactions) for which a hedging relation is established based on the management intention that is followed. 
The 3 types of coverage (fair value hedge, cash flow hedge and investment net of foreign currencies hedge) are 
described in the 2012 shelf registration document, on pages 134 to 135. 
 
According to IFRS 7, future interests related to balance sheet items under cash flow hedge strategy are detailed, 
by maturity, in the table below: 
 

30.06.2013 

€ million ≤ 1 year 1 to5 years 
Over 5 
years 

Total 

Hedged cash flows to receive 37 390 298 725 

Hedged cash flow to pay (1) (1) 0 (2) 
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� OPERATIONAL RISK 

 
 
Management and operational risks framework are described in the 2012 shelf registration document, on pages 135 
to 136 and did not register material evolutions at 30 june 2013.  
 

 
 

� LEGAL RISKS  
 
 

The main legal and tax proceedings outstanding at Crédit Agricole CIB and its fully consolidated subsidiaries are 
described on pages 136 and 137 of the 2012 shelf registration document, which was filed with the AMF on 18 
March 2013 under no. D.13-0169. 

The following changes relative to the litigation and exceptional events mentioned in this document can be noted: 
 
In the Bell case, the appeal lodged by the banks with the High Court of Australia against the Court of Appeal of the 
Supreme Court of Western Australia’s decision of 17 August 2012 was authorised by the High Court of Australia on 
22 March 2013. The High Court of Australia has not yet given a verdict on the points submitted to it. 

As regards the OFAC (Office of Foreign Assets Control) case, United States laws and regulations require adherence 
to economic sanctions put in place by the Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) on certain foreign countries, 
individuals and entities. The Department of Justice, the office of the District Attorney of New York County and other 
American governmental authorities would like to know how certain financial institutions made payments 
denominated in US dollars involving countries, individuals or entities that had been sanctioned.  
 
Crédit Agricole CIB and Crédit Agricole S.A. are currently conducting an internal review of payments denominated 
in US dollars involving countries, individuals or entities that could have been subject to such sanctions and are 
cooperating with the US authorities as part of such requests.  
 
It is currently not possible to know the outcome of these internal reviews and requests, nor the date when they will 
be concluded. If the observations made during these reviews so require, the authorities may demand the 
implementation of reinforced compliance programmes or impose financial penalties, as they did to other financial 
institutions.  
 
As concerns the Euribor/Libor and other indices case, Crédit Agricole CIB and its parent-company Crédit 
Agricole S.A., in their capacity as contributors to a number of interbank rates, have received requests for 
information from a number of authorities as part of investigations into i) the calculation of the Libor (London 
Interbank Offered Rates) rate in a number of currencies, the Euribor (Euro Interbank Offered Rate) rate and certain 
other market indices, and ii) transactions connected with these rates and indices. These requests cover a number 
of periods running from 2005 to the present date. 
 
As part of its cooperation with these authorities, Crédit Agricole CIB and its parent company Crédit Agricole S.A., 
carried out investigations in order to gather the information requested by these various authorities. This work will 
continue in the second half 2013. It is not possible to predict the outcome of said work, nor the date at which it will 
end. 
 
As concerns Singapour, at the request of the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS), Crédit Agricole CIB has 
carried out a review of communications with other banks about its contributions to local indices (SOR and SIBOR), 
as well as NDFs (Non-Deliverable Forwards) concerning certain regional currencies for the period from January 
2007 to December 2011. On 14 June 2013, the MAS asked Crédit Agricole CIB and 19 other banks to reinforce 
their organisational and control procedures for contributions to indices and involvement in the NDFs market. It also 
demanded that these banks increase their deposits in its books. The freeing up of these additional reserves is 
subject to the implementation of this organisational and control programme in a way that is satisfactory for the 
MAS.  
 
Another case should be noted: on 18 June 2013, Japanese bank Aozora LTD (“Aozora”) summoned Crédit Agricole 
CIB and Crédit Agricole Securities (U.S.A) before the New York County Supreme Court concerning a CDO 
structured by Crédit Agricole CIB named “Milestone IV”. Aozora invested USD 34 million in the CDO and claims to 
have suffered losses as a result of the structuring of the CDO. Aozora is demanding repayment of the investment, 
damages of USD 34 million and the repayment of charges and fees, the amounts of which have not yet been 
stated.  
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Any legal risks outstanding at 30 June 2013 that could have a negative impact on the Group’s net assets have been 
covered by adequate provisions taking account of the information available to Executive Management.  
 
To date, to the best of Crédit Agricole CIB’s knowledge, there are no other governmental, judiciary or arbitration 
proceedings (or any proceeding known by the Company, in abeyance or that threatens it) that could have or has 
had, in the previous six months, any substantial effect on the financial situation or the profitability of the Company 
and/or the Crédit Agricole CIB Group. 
 
 

 
 

� NON-COMPLIANCE RISKS 
 

The prevention and control of non-compliance risks are described in the 2012 shelf-registration document, on page 

137. 
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Outlook for  
the second half 2013 
 
In our view, US growth is now predicated on fundamentals that are sufficiently robust for a liquidity-based 
approach to be replaced gradually by a recovery-driven approach to modelling expectations and anticipating 
market trends. Growth is gradually expected to shift up a gear (from 1.9% in 2013 to 2.8% in 2014) without any 
surge in interest rates (10-year Treasury bond yields at 2.9% at year-end 2013) thanks to the careful steering by 
the Fed, which should be able to negotiate successfully the various stages of its exit strategy.  

 

The euro zone, anchored in a deep and prolonged recession (expected to average -0.7% in 2013), is highly 
vulnerable to financial forces. The modest return of confidence and the first buds of recovery evident here and 
there would not survive an overly rapid increase in interest rates – a turn of events that would be ill-suited to the 
pick-up phase currently underway. That said, even setting aside this risk factor, the economic upturn anticipated in 
the second half of the year is likely to be slow and arduous. Exports and investments, which should progressively 
bring the euro zone into line with the pace of the global recovery, are the sole factors providing any momentum. 
With inflation not being a concern, the ECB is expected to maintain ultra-accommodative monetary conditions. If 
need be, it may also decide to make another cut in its benchmark rate or pump more liquidity into the economy. It 
recently altered its communications strategy, introducing forward guidance to manage expectations and thus keep 
a lid on interest rates. Even so, the upturn in US rates is still bound to spread to top-rated European sovereigns 
(10-year Bunds expected to yield 1.9% at year-end 2013), but the same trend is likely to bring a contraction in 
risk premiums for the more financially fragile southern European countries, in sync with the cyclical improvement 
and progress made on the fiscal retrenchment front. The expected decline in the euro (with a target of 1.25 vs. the 
US dollar by year-end 2013) should provide a timely boost for exports, as it will increase the region’s 
competitiveness. 

 

 

For Crédit Agricole CIB  
Crédit Agricole CIB pursues the implementation of its adjustment plan at a sustained pace. The solid resilience of 
the financing and market activities came together with a strong lead on the convergence towards the Basel liquidity 
and capital ratios. This confirms the choice of the “distribute-to-originate” model that generates more revenues 
with lower balance sheet consumption. 

CLSA and CA Cheuvreux disposals and the withdrawal of Equity Derivatives activities finish the business refocusing 
undertaken in 2011. Lastly, the limited costs of the discontinuing activities in the first half of 2013 confirm the 
trend observed now for several quarters. 

The expenses decline reflects the concretisation of the efforts realised for 2 years to improve the cost-to-income 
ratio. 

The second half-year will be the opportunity to pursue the actions on the control of our resources – liquidity, 
capital and expenses – but also to maintain revenues. That is how we will increase the productivity of our scarce 
resources. 
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The consolidated financial statements consist of the general framework, the consolidated financial statements and the 
notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

 
 
 

General framework 
 
 
 

� LEGAL PRESENTATION OF CREDIT AGRICOLE   
CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK 

 
Corporate’s name : Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank 
 
Trading names : Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank - Crédit Agricole CIB – CACIB 
 
Adress and registred office : 
9, quai du Président Paul Doumer 
92920 Paris La Défense cedex - France. 
 
Registration number: 304 187 701, Nanterre Trade and Companies Registry 
 
NAF Code : 6419 Z (APE) 
 
Corporate form : 
Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank is a French Societé Anonyme (joint stock corporation) with a Board of 
Directors, governed by the laws and regulations applicable to credit institutions and joint stock corporations and by 
its Articles of Association. 
 
Since December 2011, Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank is affiliated with Crédit Agricole S.A. according 
to the Code monétaire et financier. 
 
Share capital :  
EUR 7.254.575.271 
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Consolidated financial statements 

 

���� INCOME STATEMENT 
 
€ million Notes 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

30.06.2012 

restated

Interest and similar income 3.1 2,424 5,618 3,030

Interest and similar expenses 3.1 (1,401) (2,966) (1,965)

Fee and commission income 3.2 1,200 2,219 1,322

Fee and commission expenses 3.2 (579) (1,127) (790)

Net gains/ (losses) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 3.3 504 296 1,029

Net gains/ (losses) on available-for-sale financial assets 3.4 (3) 23 (64)

Income on other activities 3.5 29 93 38

Expenses on other activities 3.5 (26) (95) (53)

NET BANKING INCOME 2,148 4,061 2,547

Operating expenses 3.6 (1,516) (3,203) (1,633)

Depreciation, amortization and impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets
3.7 (55) (136) (59)

GROSS OPERATING INCOME 577 722 855

Cost of risk 3.8 (220) (467) (213)

NET OPERATING INCOME 357 255 642

Share of net income of equity-accounted entities 69 164 80

Net gains (losses) on other assets 3.9 3 44 16

Change in value of goodwill 2.2 - (483) - 

PRE-TAX INCOME 429 (20) 738

Income tax (82) 23 (184)

Net income of discontinued or held-for-sale activities (4) (381) (172)

NET INCOME 343 (378) 382

Non-controlling interests 10 11 (7)

NET INCOME - GROUP SHARE 333 (389) 389

Earnings per share (in €) * 5.11 1.24 (1.49) 1.54

Diluted earnings per share (in €) * 5.11 1.24 (1.49) 1.54

*
 Corresponds to income including "Net income from discontinued and held-for-sale operations".  

 

 

To ensure the comparability of financial statements in accordance with IFRS 5, the contributions at 30 June 2012 of 
the financial statements of CA Cheuvreux and CLSA in the income statement of Crédit Agricole CIB have been 
reclassified to Net income of discontinued or held-for-sale activities.
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���� NET INCOME AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 
Amounts are disclosed after tax.  

 
 
 

€ million Notes 30.06.2013 31.12.2012
30.06.2012 

restated

Net Income 343 (378) 382

Actuarial gains/ (losses) on post-employment benefits (6) (130) (70)

Gains and losses on non current-assets held for sale

Other comprehensive income on items (pre-tax) that will not be

reclassified to profit and loss excluding equity-accounted entities
3.10 (6) (130) (70)

Other comprehensive income on items (pre-tax) that will not be

reclassified to profit and loss on equity-accounted entities

Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit 

and loss excluding equity accounted entities
3.10

2 43 20

Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit 

and loss on equity accounted entities

Other comprehensive income on items that will not be reclassified

to profit and loss net of income tax
3.10 (4) (87) (50)

Gains/ (losses) on currency translation adjustment (44) (52) 105

Gains/ (losses) on available-for-sale assets (54) 67 78

Gains/ (losses) on hedging derivative instruments (306) 198 97

Gains and losses on non-current assets held for sale (16) 3 (15)

Other comprehensive income on items (pre-tax) that may be

reclassified to profit and loss excluding equity-accounted entities
3.10 (420) 216 265

Other comprehensive income on items (pre-tax) that may be

reclassified to profit and loss on equity-accounted entities, Group

Share

3.10 (8) (20) 54

Income tax related to items that may be reclassified to profit and 

loss excluding equity-accounted entities
3.10

127 (77) (69)

Income tax related to items that may be reclassified to profit and 

loss on equity-accounted entities

Other comprehensive income on items that may be reclassified to

profit and loss net of income tax
3.10 (301) 119 250

Other comprehensive income net of income tax 3.10 (305) 32 200

Net income and other comprehensive income 38 (346) 582

of which Group share 27 (352) 577

of which non-controlling interests 11 6 5  
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���� BALANCE SHEET – ASSETS  
 
 
 
 

€ million Notes 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Cash, due from central banks                                                                                                 46,327 37,505

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss                                                                 5.1, 5.6 512,908 583,497

Hedging derivative instruments                                                                                        1,718 1,842

Available-for-sale financial assets                                                                                     5.2, 5.4, 5.5, 5.6 26,170 30,084

Due from banks                                                                                                 5.3, 5.4, 5.5, 5.6 56,782 65,596

Loans and receivables due from customers                                                                   5.3, 5.4, 5.5, 5.6 111,288 122,508

Valuation adjustment on interest rates hedged portfolios 26 33

Held-to-maturity financial assets                                                                                             0

Current and deferred tax assets                                                                                           1,418 2,354

Accruals, prepayments and sundry assets                                                                           78,244 55,061

Non-current assets held for sale 6,097 3,858

Investments in equity-accounted entities                                                                                                     1,431 1,369

Investment property 0

Property, plant and equipment                                                                                              5.9 444 466

Intangible assets                                                                                                                   5.9 166 159

Goodwill 2.2 953 958

TOTAL ASSETS 843,972 905,290
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���� BALANCE SHEET – LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
 
 

€ million Notes 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Due to central banks                                  1,557 1,057

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss                     5.1 524,455 609,429

Hedging derivative instruments                                                            1,071 1,063

Due to banks                                                                       5.7 67,024 58,760

Due to customers 5.7 116,668 121,161

Debt securities                             5.8 29,790 31,102

Revaluation adjustment on interest rate hedged portfolios 67 109

Current and deferred tax liabilities                                                                             440 547

Accruals, deferred income and sundry liabilities                      74,641 55,504

Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale 5,639 3,551

Insurance corporate' technical reserves 12 11

Reserves                                                                                                                 5.10 1,332 1,359

Subordinated debt                                                                                                    5.8 5,579 5,970

Total liabilities 828,275 889,623

Shareholders' equity 5.11

Shareholders' equity, Group share 15,158 15,131

Share capital and reserves 8,160 8,160

Consolidated reserves 6,196 6,585

Other comprehensive income 531 824

Other comprehensive income on non-current assets held 

for sale
(62) (49)

Net income/(loss) for the year 333 (389)

Non-controlling interests 539 536

Total shareholders' equity 15,697 15,667

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 843,972 905,290
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���� CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  
 

Share 

capital

Share 

premiums 

and reserves 
(1)

Elimination 

of treasury 

shares

Retained 

earnings

Other 

comprehensive 

income on 

items that may 

be reclassified 

to profit and 

loss

Other 

comprehensive 

income on 

items that will 

not be 

reclassified to 

profit and loss

Total other 

comprehensive 

income

Other 

comprehensive 

income on 

items that may 

be reclassified 

to profit and 

loss

Other 

comprehensive 

income on 

items that will 

not be 

reclassified to 

profit and loss

Total other 

comprehensive 

income

Shareholders' equity at 1st January 2012 6,775 8,055 14,830 (78) 815 737 15,567 589 1 (31) (30) 559 16,126

Capital increase 480 168 648 648 8 8 656

Change of auto-held securities 0 0 0 0

Dividends paid in the first half of 2012 (647) (647) (647) (16) (16) (663)

Impact of acquisitions/ disposals on non controlling interests 0 0 0 0

Movement related to stock options 0 0 0 0

Movements related to shareholders' items 480 (479) 0 1 0 0 1 (8) 0 0 (8) (7)

Change in gains/ (losses) recognised directly in equity 0 0 0 0 (50) 184 134 0 134 0 12 12 12 146

Share of change in equity of equity-accounted entities 0 54 54 54 0 0 54

First half of 2012 net income 0 389 389 (7) (7) 382

Other changes (86) (86) (86) 0 (86)

Shareholders' equity at 30 June 2012 7,255 7,490 0 14,745 (128) 1,053 925 389 16,059 574 1 (19) (18) 556 16,615

Capital increase 0 0 0 0 3 3 3

Change of auto-held securities 0 0 0 0

Dividends paid in the second half of 2012 0 0 0 (10) (10) (10)

Impact of acquisitions/ disposals on non controlling interests 0 0 0 0

Movement related to stock options 0 0 0 0 0

Movements related to shareholders' items 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (7) 0 0 (7) (7)

Change in gains/ (losses) recognised directly in equity 0 0 0 0 (37) (39) (76) 0 (76) 0 0 (18) (18) (18) (94)

Share of change in equity of equity-accounted entities (74) (74) (74) 0 0 (74)

Second half of 2012  net income 0 (778) (778) 18 18 (760)

Other changes 0 0 (13) (13) (13)

Shareholders' equity at 31 December 2012 7,255 7,490 0 14,745 (165) 940 775 (389) 15,131 572 1 (37) (36) 536 15,667

Appropriation of 2012 net income (389) (389) 389 0

Shareholders' equity at 1st January 2013 7,255 7,101 0 14,356 (165) 940 775 0 15,131 572 1 (37) (36) 536 15,667

Capital increase 0 0 8 8 8

Change of auto-held securities 0 0 0 0

Dividends paid in the first half of 2013 0 0 (15) (15) (15)

Impact of acquisitions/ disposals on non controlling(1) 0 0 0 0

Impact of acquisitions/ disposals on non controlling interests 0 0 (1) (1) (1)

Movement related to stock options 0 0 0 0

Movements related to shareholders' items 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (8) (8) (8)

Change in gains/ (losses) recognised directly in equity 0 0 0 0 (4) (294) (298) 0 (298) 0 0 1 1 1 (297)

Share of change in equity of equity-accounted entities (8) (8) (8) 0 0 (8)

First half of 2013 net income 0 333 333 10 10 343

Other changes 0 0 0

Shareholders' equity at 30 June 2013 7,255 7,101 0 14,356 (169) 638 469 333 15,158 574 1 (36) (35) 539 15,697

Equity, 

Group 

share

Other comprehensive incomeShare capital and reserves

Net income

Group share

Total 

Share-

holders' 

equity 
Capital 

associated, 

reserves 

and income

Non-controlling interests

Equity, non 

controlling 

interests

Other comprehensive income

€ million

 
 
(1) Consolidated reserves before elimination of treasury shares. 
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���� CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
 

The cash flow statement is presented using the 
indirect method. 
 
Operating activities are Crédit Agricole CIB’s 
revenue generating activities. Tax inflows and 
outflows are included in full within operating activities. 
 
Investing activities show the impact of cash inflows 
and outflows associated with purchases and sales of 
investments in consolidated and non-consolidated 
companies, property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets. This section includes strategic 
investments classified as available for sale. 
 

Financing activities show the impact of cash inflows 
and outflows associated with shareholders’ equity and 
long-term financing. 
 
The net cash flows attributable to the operating, 
investment and financing activities of discontinued 
operations are presented on separate lines in the 
cash flow statement. 
 
Net cash and cash equivalents include cash, debit 
and credit balances with central banks, and debit and 
credit demand balances with banks. 
 
 
 

€ million First half 2013

First half 

2012 

restated

31.12.2012

Pre-tax income 429 738 (20)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 55 59 136

Impairment of goodwill and other non-current assets 0 0 483

Net charge to impairment 189 190 357

Share of net income (loss) of equity-accounted entities (69) (80) (164)

Net loss/(gain) on investing activities 41 (12) (89)

Net loss/(gain) on financing activities 132 155 129

Other movements (400) (636) (341)

Total non-cash items included in pre-tax income and other adjustments (52) (324) 511

Change in interbank items 4,899 (5,554) (9,500)

Change in customer items 9,339 2,188 10,770

Change in financial assets and liabilities (13,777) (3,970) 10,763

Change in non-financial assets and liabilities (3,634) 685 10,943

Dividends received from equity-accounted entities 0 7

Taxes paid 791 585 403

Net decrease/(increase) in assets and liabilities used in operating activities (2,382) (6,066) 23,386

Change in discontinued activities (190) (163) (146)

TOTAL net cash flows provided/(used) by OPERATING activities (A) (2,195) (5,815) 23,731

Change in equity investments
(1) 15 (184) (157)

Change in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (50) (47) 80

Change in discontinued activities 92 (9) (3)

TOTAL net cash flows provided/(used) by INVESTING activities (B) 57 (240) (80)

Cash received from/(paid to) shareholders (7) (11) (11)

Other cash provided/(used) by financing activities (558) (2,115) (2,198)

Change in discontinued activities 2 1 (1)

TOTAL net cash flows provided/(used) by FINANCING activities (C) (563) (2,125) (2,210)

Impact of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (D) (754) 327 (881)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C + D) (3,455) (7,853) 20,560

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 51,810 31,250 31,250

Net cash accounts and accounts with central banks* 36,445 21,783 21,783

Net demand loans and deposits with banks** 15,365 9,467 9,467

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 48,355 23,397 51,810

Net cash accounts and accounts with central banks* 44,764 17,519 36,445

Net demand loans and deposits with banks** 3,591 5,878 15,365

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,455) (7,853) 20,560

(1) Cash in equity investments :

* Composed of the net balance of "cash, due from central banks", excluding accrued interests including cash and cash equivalents from activities reclassified as held for sale.

** Composed of the net balance of "performing current accounts in debit and performing overnight accounts and advances" as disclosed in note 5.3 and of "current accounts in credit and overnight 
overdrafts and accounts" as disclosed in note 5.7 (excluding accrued interests)

This line reflects the net cashs flows linked to acquisitions and disposals on equity investments. These external operations are described in note 2.1 "Main structural transactions and material events in 
the period".

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 34



2 – Consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2013
 

 

 

Notes to the financial statements  

���� Note 1 : Accounting principles and methods applicable 
 
The condensed interim consolidated financial statements of the Crédit Agricole CIB for the six months ended 30 June 
2013 have been prepared and are presented in accordance with IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, which prescribes 
the minimum content and the principles for recognition and measurement for an interim report. 
 
Pursuant to EC Regulation 1606/2002, the standards and interpretations used to prepare the condensed interim 
consolidated financial statements are the same as those applied to the Crédit Agricole group's financial statements for 
the year ended 31 December 2012, which were prepared in accordance with IAS/IFRS and IFRIC, including the "carve 
out" version of IAS 39 as endorsed by the European Union, which allows for certain exceptions in the application of 
macro-hedge accounting. 
 
These standards and interpretations are supplemented by the provisions of those IFRS as endorsed by the European 
Union as of 30 June 2013 and that must be applied in 2013 for the first time. These cover the following:  
 

 

Standards, amendments or interpretations 

 

Date of publication by 

European Union 

Date of the first-

time compulsory 

application : 

financial years 

commencing on 

 

Applicable 

by the Group 

Amendment to IAS 1 regarding the presentation of 

other comprehensive income – breakdown of equity 

 

June 5
th

 2012 

(EU n° 475/2012) 

 

January 1
st

 2013  

 

Yes 

Amendment to IAS 19 on  Employee Benefits 

(Defined-Benefit Plans) 

 

June 5
th

 2012 

(EU n° 475/2012) 

 

January 1
st

 2013  

 

Yes 

 

IFRS13 regarding  fair value measurement 

 

December 11
th

 2012 

(EU n° 1255/12) 

 

January 1
st

 2013  

 

Yes 

 

Amendment to IAS 12 on deferred tax recognition 

on assets / liabilities in addition to the provisions of 

SIC 21 

 

December 11
th

 2012 

(EU n° 1255/12) 

 

January 1
st

 2013  

 

No 

 

Interpretation to IFRIC 20 on stripping costs in the 

production period of surface mines 

December 11
th

 2012 

(EU n° 1255/12) 

 

January 1
st

 2013  

 

No 

 

Amendment to IFRS 1 on severe hyperinflation 

December 11
th

 2012 

(EU n° 1255/12) 

 

January 1
st

 2013  

 

No 

 

Amendment to IFRS 7 relative to disclosures about 

financial assets and liabilities offsetting 

December 13
th

 2012 

(EU n° 1256/12) 

 

January 1
st

 2013  

 

Yes 

Amendment to IFRS 1 (public loans). Prospective 

application of the discount on public loans 

commanding a rate below market 

March 4
th

 2013 

(EU n° 183/2013) 

 

January 1
st

 2013 

 

No 

Amendment relative to the annual improvements of 

IFRSs, 2009-2011 amending IFRS 1, IAS 1, IAS 16, IAS 

32, IAS 34. 

March 27
th

 2013 

(EU n° 301/2013) 

 

January 1
st

 2013 

 

Yes 

 
IFRS 13 gives a general framework to fair value measurement resting on a single definition based on an exit price. It 
provides new information to be disclosed in the notes regarding Fair Value valuations.  
 
The main new element of this standard is that it takes into account the non execution risk relative to liabilities side 
derivatives (Debit Valuation Adjustment or own credit risk) based on a symmetrical approach to that of the 
measurement of the counterparty risk on assets side derivatives (Credit Valuation Adjustment). 

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 35



2 – Consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2013
 

 

 

Regarding CVA, CACIB has also upgraded its estimate of counterparty risk methods, consistent with the principles of 
IFRS 13, the terms of risk management and market practices, to maximize the use of market parameters observable 
when deemed relevant. 
 
As of January 1st 2013, the impact of the first application of IFRS 13 within Crédit Agricole CIB is : - 46 million € in 
terms of Net Banking Income (CVA = -€296m / DVA = +€250m).  
 
The application of the other provisions has no material impact both on income and on shareholders’ equity for the 
period.  
 
Indeed:  
- The amendment of IAS 1 requires a distinction between recyclable and non-recyclable gains and losses taken 
directly to equity. The implementation of this standard only entails a change in presentation. 
- The amendment to IAS 19 requires actuarial gains and losses relating to defined-benefit plans to be recorded in 
other comprehensive income. This method is already applied by the group (optional in the current version of IAS 19). 
The impact of this amendment will be very limited and non-significant (recording as OCI in the accounts as of June 
30th 2013). 
- Under the amendment of IFRS 7 which aims at harmonizing the offsetting rules under US GAAP and IFRS the 
effects of netting agreements on financial assets and liabilities must be specified. This amendment will entail an 
additional note in the notes to the financial statements as of December 31st 2013.  
 
Where the early application of standards and interpretations is optional in a given period, the Group has not selected 
this option unless otherwise mentioned. 
This concerns particularly: 
 

 

Standards, Amendments or interpretations 

Date of publication by 

the European Union 

Date of the first-

time compulsory 

application : 

financial years 

commencing on 

 

Applicable 

by the Group 

IFRS 10 on consolidated financial statements. 

 

December 11
th

 2012 

EU n° 1254/12 

 

January 1
st

 2014  

 

Yes 

IFRS 11 on joint arrangements 

 

 

December 11
th

 2012  

EU n° 1254/12 

 

January 1
st

 2014  

 

Yes 

IFRS 12 on disclosure of interests in other entities 

 

December 11
th

 2012  

EU n° 1254/12 

 

January 1
st

 2014  

 

Yes 

IAS 27 amended on separate financial statements 

 

December 11
th

 2012 

EU n° 1254/12 

 

January 1
st

 2014  

 

No 

IAS 28 amended on investments in associates and 

joint ventures 

December 11
th

 2012  

EU n° 1254/12  

 

January 1
st

 2014 

 

Yes 

Amendment to IAS 32 on the presentation of netting 

of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

December 13
th

 2012 

EU n° 1256/12 

 

January 1
st

 2014 

 

Yes 

Amendment relative to transitory provisions for IFRS 

10 Consolidation of Financial Statements, IFRS11 on 

Joint arrangements and IFRS Disclosures on interests 

in other entities. 

 

April 4
th

 2013 

EU n° 313/2013   

 

January 1
st

 2014  

 

 

Yes 

 
 
These amendments are not expected to have significant impacts for Crédit Agricole CIB, both on the net income or 
equity. 
 
Impact surveys relative to the implementation of IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 are currently in progress.  
Besides, standards and interpretations that have been published by the IASB, but not yet been adopted by the 
European Union, will become mandatory only as from the date of such adoption. The Group has not applied them as 
of 30 June 2013. 
 
The condensed interim consolidated financial statements are intended to update the information supplied in the 
Consolidated financial statements of 31 December 2012 of the Crédit Agricole CIB and must be read as a supplement  
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to these last ones. So, only the most significant information on the evolution of the financial situation and the 
performances of the Group are mentioned in these half-year statements. 

 
By their nature, estimates have been made to prepare the consolidated financial statements. These estimates are 

based on certain assumptions and involve risks and uncertainties as to their actual achievement in the future. 
Accounting estimates that require the formulation of assumptions are used mainly in measuring financial instruments 
at fair value, non-consolidated equity investments, equity-accounted companies, pension plans, other future 
employee benefits and stock-option plans, permanent impairment of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity 
securities, irrecoverable debt write-downs, provisions, impairment of goodwill and deferred tax assets.
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���� Note 2 : Significant information relating to the first half of 
2013 

 
The detailed scope of consolidation and its main changes at 30 June 2013 is given in note 10. 

 
2.1 Main structural transactions and material events in the period 

 
 

I – Sale of the Crédit Agricole Cheuvreux group  

 
In line with the Crédit Agricole CIB's strategy of strengthening its financial structure and refocusing its activities, the 
sale of Crédit Agricole Cheuvreux to Kepler Capital Markets was finalised on 29 April 2013. 
 
Pursuant to IFRS 5, as from 30 September 2012, the assets and liabilities of  CA Cheuvreux and its subsdiaries were 
restated on the balance sheet under "Non-current assets and liabilities held for sale" and their net income under "Net 
income from discontinued or held-for-sale operations". 
 
In accordance with IFRS 5, the loss resulting from the fair value of the assets held for sale was recorded in the year 
2012 amounting to -€303 million. In the first half of 2013, the completion of the sale generates a non-significant 
impact on the accounts of Crédit Agricole CIB. 
 
As IFRS 5 applies retrospectively to the inclusion in the income statement of discontinued or held-for-sale operations, 
the income statement for the first half of 2012 was restated to incorporate the effects of the IFRS 5 restatement. 
 
As a reminder, on 31 December 2012, CA Cheuvreux financial statements were classified as "Non-current assets held 
for sale" for €1,135 million and "Liabilities related to assets held for sale" for €1,029 million. 
 
As part of the finalisation of the sale of Crédit Agricole Cheuvreux, Crédit Agricole CIB purchased a 15% stake in the 
new entity, Kepler Cheuvreux. 
 

 
 
 II – Temporary holding of a 50% stake in Monoprix 

As part of Casino's planned purchase of the 50% of stake in Monoprix held by Galeries Lafayette, Crédit Agricole CIB 
agreed to temporarily hold the Monoprix shares pending the decision by the French Competition Authority. This 
holding option, which complies with the merger control regulatory framework, was included in the transaction 
agreement signed on 26 July 2012 by Casino and Galeries Lafayette. 

On 5 April 2013, Casino exercised its right to have a wholly-owned subsidiary of Crédit Agricole CIB, Investeur 103, 
temporarily hold the 50% stake in Monoprix. This temporary holding arrangement, of a maximum duration of one 
year, will be in place until the examination of the case by the French Competition Authority can be completed. On this 
occasion, Crédit Agricole CIB has entered into a firm commitment to deliver Investeur 103 to Casino. 

The characteristics of the holding transaction mean that Crédit Agricole CIB did not consolidate Investeur 103, owing 
to the lack of direct exposure to the yield from the Monoprix shares. Moreover, given the firm commitment to hand 
over Investeur 103 to Casino, the Investeur 103 securities are presented on a separate line, in accordance with    
IFRS 5. 

The 50% stake in Monoprix was acquired by Investeur 103 at the price of €1,175 million, prepaid by Casino to Crédit 
Agricole CIB. In order to make the entire transaction easier to understand, this prepaid forward sale is recognised on 
a separate line on the balance sheet, under Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets held for sale. All 
instruments comprising this temporary holding transaction were therefore presented in accordance with the 
provisions of IFRS 5. The transaction will be finalised with the full handover of Investeur 103 to Casino, which will 
lead to the associated liability being extinguished. 

On 10 July 2013, the French Competition Authority approved the full acquisition of Monoprix by Casino, subject to 
certain undertakings.  
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III - Processing of structured issues of Crédit Agricole CIB 

 
The structured issues issued by Crédit Agricole CIB, classified under "Financial liabilities held for trading", were 

restated under "Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss".  

 
The management objective of these issues is not short-term repurchase to generate profit on price variations as part 
of a transaction activity.  
 
This accounting allocation adjustment within the meaning of IAS 8 (pursuant to the application of the option 
permitted by IAS 39) reflects the desire to opt for fair value measurement through profit or loss for these structured 
issues. The issues are hedged by financial instruments managed within transaction portfolios and the fair value 
measurement through profit or loss of the structured issues allows the processing of all related transactions to be 
aligned. 
 
This allocation adjustment, which relates to an amount of €32,661 million at 1 January 2013, had no impact on the 
results or the presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Moreover, in accordance with the requirements of 
IFRS 7 applicable to liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition, the Group has 
always communicated the impact of its own credit risk on the remeasurement of these issues. 
 
In accordance with IAS 39, the Group values its structured issues, recognised at fair value, by taking as a reference 
the issuer spread that specialist participants agree to receive to acquire new Group issues. The change in issuer 
spread on structured issues issued by Crédit Agricole CIB, measured on the basis of the last end-of-period share 
issue table, generated an impact of:  
 
 

- at 30 June 2013 : an expense of  -€393 million in revenues and an expense of -€258 million in Net income 
Group share; 

- at 31 December 2012 : a charge of -€933 million in revenues and an expense of -€612 million in Net income 
Group share; 

- at 30 June 2012 : an income of +€225 million in revenues and an income of +€148 million in Net income 
Group share. 

 
In order to ensure consistency between the Group's segment information and the internal management data used to 
measure the performance of each of the Group's business lines, as of 2013 the impact of the change in issuer spread 
of Crédit Agricole CIB's issues is recognised under "Corporate centre" instead of "Corporate and investment banking". 
 
Unrealised gains or losses linked to the revaluation of Crédit Agricole CIB structured issues at 30 June 2013 stood at  
-€316 million. 
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2.2 Goodwill  
 
 
 
 

€ million
31.12.2012 

GROSS
31.12.2012 

NET

Increase 

(Acquisitions)

Decrease 

(Disposals)

Impairment 

losses during 

the period

Transalation 

adjustments

Other 

movements
30.06.2013 

GROSS
30.06.2013 

NET

Corporate and Investment Banking (excluding brokers)
644 474 0 0 0 0 0 644 474

Brokers, other 662 0 0 0 0 0 0 662 0

Private Banking 484 484 0 0 0 (5) 0 479 479

TOTAL 1,790 958 0 0 0 (5) 0 1,785 953  
 
 
Within the framework of the interim financial statements, in accordance with the Group’s methods and principles, given the absence of 
objective motivation of impairment, no additional impairment of goodwill was recorded at June 30, 2013. 
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2.3 Related parties 
 
 

Relationships with Crédit Agricole S.A. group

€ million 30.06.2013

ASSETS

Loans and advances 10,871

Derivative financial instruments held for trading 33,170

LIABILITIES

Deposits 17,993

Derivative financial instruments held for trading 29,944

Subordinated debt 5,338

Preferred shares 420

FINANCING COMMITMENTS

Other guarantees given 1,116

Guarantees received 448

Other guarantees received 3,379

Information concerning preferred shares appears in note 5.11.

Relationships between consolidated companies of Crédit Agricole CIB group

- Due from banks : €455 million

- Due to banks : €430 million

- Securities sold under repurchase agreement : €135 million

- Derivative financial assets held for trading : €124 million

- Derivative financial liabilities held for trading : €125 million

- Other guarantees received : €105 million

Outstandings at the end of the period between fully consolidated companies and equity-accounted companies are not

eliminated in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

At 30 June 2013, Credit Agricole PARIS non-eliminated outstandings with its partner BSF (Bank Saudi Fransi) on and off the

balance sheet are: 

A list of the Crédit Agricole CIB Group’s consolidated companies can be found in note 10.

Transactions realised between two fully consolidated entities are fully eliminated.

Outstandings at the end of the period between fully consolidated and proportionally consolidated companies are only

eliminated to the extent of the interests held by group shareholders. The remaining balances are included in Crédit Agricole

CIB’s consolidated financial statements. At 30 June 2013, non-eliminated outstandings with UBAF and Newedge on the

balance sheet were as follows:

Parties related to Crédit Agricole CIB Group are companies of Crédit Agricole S.A. Group, companies of Crédit Agricole Group

that are fully consolidated, proportionately consolidated or accounted for using the equity method, and Senior Executives of

the Group.

On-and off-balance sheet amounts representing transactions between the Crédit Agricole CIB Group and the rest of the 

Crédit Agricole S.A. Group are summarized in the following table:

The outstandings of loans and advances represent cash relations between Crédit Agricole CIB and Crédit Agricole S.A.

The outstandings of derivatives instruments held for trading mainly represent Crédit Agricole Group interest-rate hedging

transactions arranged by Crédit Agricole CIB in the market.

( (( (( (((( (( (( (( (( ((((((((((((

 
 
 
 

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 41



2 – Consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2013
 

 

 

2.4 Investments in joint ventures 
 

List and description of investments in joint ventures

At 30 june 2013, the main investments in joint ventures were :

Newedge, consolidated at 50%, whose contribution to the consolidated balance sheet amounts to
€22,900 million , €846 million in expenses and €849 million in revenues;

UBAF, consolidated at 47.01%, whose contribution to the consolidated balance sheet amounts to

€767 million, €51 million in expenses and €55 million in revenues. 

Commitments in respect of investments in joint ventures

At 30 june 2013, there were no material commitments for investments in joint ventures.     
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���� Note 3 : Notes to the income statement 

 
To ensure the comparability of financial statements, in accordance with IFRS 5, the contributions at 30 June 2012 of 
the financial statements of CA Cheuvreux and CLSA in the income statement of the group Crédit Agricole CIB have 
been reclassified to Net income of discontinued or held-for-sale activities. 

 
3.1 Interest income and expenses 

 

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012
30.06.2012 

restated

Loans and advances to banks 305 722 532

Loans and advances to customers 1,786 4,015 2,061

Accrued interest receivable on available-for-sale financial assets 191 365 197

Accrued interest receivable on hedging instruments 142 495 220

Lease finance 0 21 20

Interest income 
(1) 2,424 5,618 3,030

Deposits by banks (336) (878) (550)

Customer accounts (357) (964) (524)

Debt securities (394) (386) (395)

Subordinated debt (132) (130) (155)

Accrued interest payable on hedging instruments (182) (593) (326)

Finance leases 0 (15) (15)

Interest expenses (1,401) (2,966) (1,965)

(1) Of which €54 million on individually impaired receivables at 30 June 2013 compared to €69 million at 31 December 2012 and 
€2 million at 30 June 2012.

 
 
 
3.2 Net fee and commission  

 

€ million

Income Expense Net Income Expense Net Income Expense Net

Interbank transactions 16 (23) (7) 77 (75) 2 21 (9) 12

Customer transactions 199 (34) 165 353 (75) 278 158 (47) 111

Securities transactions (including brokerage) 165 (115) 50 280 (205) 75 140 (116) 24

Foreign exchange transactions 5 (6) (1) 11 (10) 1 6 (6) 0

Transactions on derivative instruments and 

other off-balance sheet transactions (including 

brokerage)

474 (303) 171 896 (593) 303 691 (537) 154

Payment instruments and other banking and 

financial services
202 (88) 114 338 (159) 179 179 (83) 96

Trust and similar activities 139 (10) 129 264 (10) 254 127 8 135

Net fee and commission 1,200 (579) 621 2,219 (1,127) 1,092 1,322 (790) 532

31.12.201230.06.2013 30.06.2012 restated
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3.3 Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments at fair value through profit 
or loss 

 
 

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012
30.06.2012 

restated

Dividends received 127 189 126

Unrealised or realised gains (losses) on financial assets/liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss classified as held for trading 
(1) (481) (102) 368

Unrealised or realised gains (losses) on financial assets/liabilities designated as at fair

value through profit or loss 
(1) (375) 0 1

Gain/loss on foreign exchange transactions and similar financial instruments (excluding 

gain/loss on hedges on net investments in foreign activities)
1,234 210 536

Gain/loss from hedge accounting (1) (1) (2)

Net gains (losses) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 504 296 1,029

In particular, the impact of the issuer spreads, reclassified in this same category, amounts to -€393m et 30 June 2013. At 31 December 2012 and 30 
June 2012, the impact of EUR -€933m and -€225m was recognized unrealized gain or loss on liabilities at fair value through profit or loss classified as 
held for trading.

(1) Following the reclassification of structured issues, from the  the "Financial liabilities held for trading" to the "Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss" (see note 2.1 Main structural operations significant events of the period ), the impact on net banking income for the period (-€375m at 30 
June 2013) is now recognised in unrealized gain or loss on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

 
 
 
 

Net gain/(loss) resulting from hedge accounting decomposes as follow :

€ million

Gains Losses Net

Fair value hedges

Change in fair value of hedged items attributable to 
hedged risks

383 (338) 45

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives (including sales 
of hedges)

336 (382) (46)

Cash flow hedges

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives – ineffective 
portion

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives – ineffective 
portion

Fair value hedge of the interest rate exposure of a 
portfolio of financial instruments

Change in fair value of hedged items 18 (11) 7

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives 11 (18) (7)

Cash flow hedge of the interest rate exposure of a 
portfolio of financial instruments

Change in fair value of hedging instrument – ineffective 
portion

Total gain/(loss) from hedge accounting 748 (749) (1)

30.06.2013
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€ million

Gains Losses Net

Fair value hedges

Change in fair value of hedged items attributable to 
hedged risks

277 (184) 93

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives (including sales 
of hedges)

186 (280) (94)

Cash flow hedges

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives – ineffective 
portion

0 0

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives – ineffective 
portion

0 0

Fair value hedge of the interest rate exposure of a 
portfolio of financial instruments

Change in fair value of hedged items 0 (77) (77)

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives 77 0 77

Cash flow hedge of the interest rate exposure of a 
portfolio of financial instruments

Change in fair value of hedging instrument – ineffective 
portion

Total gain/(loss) from hedge accounting 540 (541) (1)

€ million

Gains Losses Net

Fair value hedges

Change in fair value of hedged items attributable to 
hedged risks

199 (137) 62

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives (including sales 
of hedges)

137 (201) (64)

Cash flow hedges

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives – ineffective 
portion

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives – ineffective 
portion

Fair value hedge of the interest rate exposure of a 
portfolio of financial instruments

Change in fair value of hedged items 12 (9) 3

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives 9 (12) (3)

Cash flow hedge of the interest rate exposure of a 
portfolio of financial instruments

Change in fair value of hedging instrument – ineffective 
portion

Total gain/(loss) from hedge accounting 357 (359) (2)

30.06.2012 restated 

31.12.2012
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3.4 Net gains/(losses) on available-for-sale financial assets 
 

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012
30.06.2012 

restated

Dividends received 13 51 28

Realised gains or losses on available-for-sale financial assets
 (1 ) 38 213 45

Permanent impairment losses on equity investment (50) (69) (23)

Gains/(losses) on disposals of loans and receivables (4) (172) (114)

Net gains/(losses) on available-for-sale financial assets (3) 23 (64)

(1) Excluding realised gains or losses on permanently impaired fixed-income securities recognised as available-for-sale financial assets mentioned 

in Note 3.8.  
 
3.5 Net income/(expenses) on other activities 
 

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012
30.06.2012 

restated

Other net income from insurance activities 0 3 3

Change in insurance technical reserves (1) (4) (3)

Other net income (expenses) 4 (1) (15)

Net income (expenses) on other activities 3 (2) (15)
 

 
 
3.6 Operating expenses 

 
 

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012
30.06.2012 

restated

Staff costs (997) (2,085) (1,098)

Taxes other than income or payroll-related (58) (120) (50)

External services and other general operating expenses (461) (998) (485)

Operating expenses (1,516) (3,203) (1,633)

Detail of staff costs

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012
30.06.2012 

restated

Salaries 
(1) (747) (1,559) (828)

Contribution to defined-contribution plans (42) (98) (53)

Contribution to defined-benefit plans (8) (17) (9)

Other social security expenses (165) (340) (179)

Incentive plans and profit-sharing (16) (25) (9)

Payroll-related tax (19) (46) (20)

Total Staff costs (997) (2,085) (1,098)

(1) including charges relating to stock options plans for €29.5 million on the 1st half 2013 against 

€70.1 million at 31 December 2012 and 40.6 million on the 1st half of 2012.
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3.7 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of property, plant and 
equipments and intangible assets 
 

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012
30.06.2012 

restated

Depreciation charges and amortisation (56) (127) (59)

- Property, plant and equipment (34) (86) (40)

- Intangible assets (22) (41) (19)

Impairment losses 1 (9) 0

- Property, plant and equipment 1 (9) 0

- Intangible assets 0 0 0

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of property, 

plant & equipment and assets
(55) (136) (59)

 
 
 
3.8 Cost of risk 
 
 

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012
30.06.2012 

restated

Charge to reserves and impairment losses (236) (618) (208)

Fixed income available-for-sale financial assets (9) (21) (6)

Loans and receivables (194) (409) (171)

Other assets (5) (6) (2)

Financing commitments (2) (10) (7)

Risks and expenses (26) (172) (22)

Reversals of reserves and impairment losses 114 559 361

Fixed income available-for-sale financial assets 3 41 41

Loans and receivables 85 456 315

Other assets 1 2 0

Financing commitments 12 11 1

Risks and expenses 13 49 4

Net charges to reversals of reserves and impairment (122) (59) 153

Realised gains or losses on disposal of impaired fixed income 

available-for-sale financial assets 0
(34) (34)

Bad debts written off, not impaired (84) (399) (353)

Recoveries on bad debts written off 5 46 27

Losses on financing commitments 0 0 0

Other losses (19) (21) (6)

Cost of risk (220) (467) (213)

(1) The reversals of reserves and impairment losses on loans and advances include the reversal of the collective provision 
registered on CDO and RMBS portfolios for +€45 million. 

(2) Losses on loans and advances include the losses on CDO and RMBS disposals for -€57 million.

(1)

(2)
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3.9 Net gains/(losses) on other assets 
 
 
 

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012
30.06.2012 

restated

Property, plant & equipment and 

intangible assets used in operations
(1) 8 1

Gains on disposals 0 9 1

Losses on disposals (1) (1) 0

Consolidated equity investments 4 36 15

Gains on disposals 5 36 16

Losses on disposals (1) 0 (1)

Net gains or losses on other assets 3 44 16
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3.10 Change in other comprehensive income 
 
 
Below is presented the detail of gain and losses on the period :

Details of other comprehensive income

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012
30.06.2012 

restated

Other comprehensive income on items that may be reclassified to 

profit or loss

Gains and losses on translation adjustments (44) (52) 105

Revaluation adjustment on the period

Reclassified to profit or loss

Other reclassifications (44) (52) 105

Gains and losses on available-for-sale financial assets (54) 67 78

Revaluation adjustment on the period (71) 192 96

Reclassified to profit or loss 21 (127) (19)

Other reclassifications (4) 2 1

Gains and losses on hedging derivative instruments (306) 198 97

Revaluation adjustment on the period (334) 220 113

Reclassified to profit or loss

Other reclassifications 28 (22) (16)

Gains and losses on non-current assets held for sale (16) 3 (15)

Revaluation adjustment on the period (1) (1) 3

Reclassified to profit or loss (5) 3 1

Other reclassifications (10) 1 (19)

Other comprehensive income on items (pre-tax) that may be reclassified

to profit or loss on equity-accounted entities
(8) (20) 54

Income tax related on items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

excluding equity-accounted entities
127 (77) (69)

Income tax related to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss on

equity accounted entities

Other comprehensive income on items that may be reclassified to

profit or loss net of income tax
(301) 119 250

Other comprehensive income on items that will not be reclassified 

to profit or loss

Change in actuarial gains and losses on post-employment benefits (6) (130) (70)

Gains and losses on non-current assets held for sale

Other comprehensive income on items that will not be reclassified to 

profit or loss on equity-accounted entities

Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

excluding equity accounted entities
2 43 20

Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

on equity accounted entities

Other comprehensive income on items that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss net of income tax
(4) (87) (50)

Net income and other comprehensive income (305) 32 200

of which Group share (306) 38 188

of which non-controlling interests 1 (6) 12

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 49



2 – Consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2013
 

 

 

Details of tax effects relating to other comprehensive income 
 

Gross
Income 

tax

Net of 

income 

tax

Net 

o/which 

Group 

share

Gross
Income 

tax

Net of 

income 

tax

Net 

o/which 

Group 

share

Gross
Income 

tax

Net of 

income 

tax

Net 

o/which 

Group 

share

Other comprehensive income on items that may be 

reclassified to profit or loss

Gains and losses on translation adjustments 126 0 126 164 (44) (44) (48) 170 170 212

Gains and losses on available-for-sale instruments 185 (17) 168 165 (54) 12 (42) (42) 239 (29) 210 207

Gains and losses on hedging derivative instruments 509 (188) 321 318 (306) 113 (193) (191) 815 (301) 514 509

Gains and losses on non-current assets held for sale (66) 0 (66) (62) (16) 2 (14) (13) (50) (2) (52) (49)

Other comprehensive income on items that may be reclassified

to profit or loss excluding equity-accounted entities
754 (205) 549 585 (420) 127 (293) (294) 1,174 (332) 842 879

Other comprehensive income on items that may be reclassified

to profit or loss on equity-accounted entities
54 0 54 54 (8) (8) (8) 62 62 62

Other comprehensive income on items that may be

reclassified to profit or loss
808 (205) 603 639 (428) 127 (301) (302) 1,236 (332) 904 941

Other comprehensive income on items that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss

Change in actuarial gains and losses on post-employment 

benefits
(245) 76 (169) (170) (6) 2 (4) (4) (239) 74 (165) (166)

Gains and losses on non-current assets held for sale

Other comprehensive income on items that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss excluding equity-accounted entities

Other comprehensive income on items that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss on equity-accounted entities

Other comprehensive income on items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss
(245) 76 (169) (170) (6) 2 (4) (4) (239) 74 (165) (166)

Other comprehensive income 563 (129) 434 469 (434) 129 (305) (306) 997 (258) 739 775

Gross
Income 

tax

Net of 

income 

tax

Net 

o/which 

Group 

share

Gross
Income 

tax

Net of 

income 

tax

Net 

o/which 

Group 

share

Gross
Income 

tax

Net of 

income 

tax

Net 

o/which 

Group 

share

Other comprehensive income on items that may be 

reclassified to profit or loss

Gains and losses on translation adjustments 328 0 328 351 105 105 94 223 223 257

Gains and losses on available-for-sale instruments 249 (55) 194 191 78 (27) 51 48 171 (28) 143 143

Gains and losses on hedging derivative instruments 714 (267) 447 443 97 (40) 57 58 617 (227) 390 385

Gains and losses on non-current assets held for sale (69) (2) (71) (68) (15) (2) (17) (16) (54) (54) (52)

Other comprehensive income on items that may be reclassified

to profit or loss excluding equity-accounted entities
1,222 (324) 898 917 265 (69) 196 184 957 (255) 702 733

Other comprehensive income on items that may be reclassified

to profit or loss on equity-accounted entities
136 0 136 136 54 54 54 82 82 82

Other comprehensive income on items that may be

reclassified to profit or loss
1,358 (324) 1,034 1,053 319 (69) 250 238 1,039 (255) 784 815

Other comprehensive income on items that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss

Change in actuarial gains and losses on post-employment 

benefits
(178) 51 (127) (128) (70) 20 (50) (50) (108) 31 (77) (78)

Gains and losses on non-current assets held for sale 0 0 0 0 0

Other comprehensive income on items that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss excluding equity-accounted entities
0 0 0 0 0

Other comprehensive income on items that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss on equity-accounted entities
0 0 0 0 0

Other comprehensive income on items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss
(178) 51 (127) (128) (70) 20 (50) (50) (108) 31 (77) (78)

Other comprehensive income 1,180 (273) 907 925 249 (49) 200 188 931 (224) 707 737

31.12.2011

30.06.2013 31.12.2012Changes

€ million

€ million

30.06.2012 restated Changes
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���� Note 4 : Segment information  

 

Definition of operating segments 

The naming of Crédit Agricole CIB’s business lines corresponds to the Definitions applied within the Crédit Agricole 
S.A. Group. 

Presentation of business lines 

Operations are broken down into five business lines. 
Financing activities include French and international commercial banking and structured finance : project finance, 
aircraft finance, shipping finance, acquisition finance, property finance and international trade. 
Capital markets and investment banking encompasses capital market activities (treasury, foreign exchange, interest-
rate derivatives and debt markets), investment banking activities (mergers and acquisitions and equity capital 
markets), as well as equity brokerage activities carried out by CA Cheuvreux and CLSA and futures brokerage 
activities carried out by Newedge.    
 
Since the new organization of Crédit Agricole CIB, established in the third quarter of 2012, linked with the adjustment 
plan, discontinuing activities now include the correlation business, the CDO, the CLO and ABS portfolio, the equity 
derivatives excluding corporates and convertibles, the exotic interest rate derivatives, and the impaired portfolios of 
residential underlyings. 
 
These three business lines make up nearly 100% of the Corporate and Investment banking business line of Crédit 
Agricole S.A.. 
 
Crédit Agricole is also active in private banking through its locations in France, Switzerland, Luxembourg, Monaco, 
Spain, and Brazil.  
 
The Corporate Center business line encompass the non-operational activities of the above business lines, and the 
impact of the change in debt issues spread of Crédit Agricole CIB since 1 January 2013, which was before classified in 
the Capital markets and Investment banking. 
 
Transactions between operating segments are effected at arm’s length.  
 
 

€ million Financing

Capital markets 

and Invesrment 
banking

Discontinuing 
operations

Total Corporate 

and Investement 
Banking

Private Banking Corporate center Total

Net banking income 1,019 1,047 103 2,169 372 (393) 2,148

Operating expenses (441) (776) (86) (1,303) (268) 0 (1,571)

Gross operating income 578 271 17 866 104 (393) 577

Cost of risk (171) (16) (29) (216) (4) (220)

Operating income 407 255 (12) 650 100 (393) 357

Share of net income of equity-accounted 

entities
69 69 0 69

Net gains/(losses) on other assets 3 0 0 3 0 0 3

Change in value of goodwill 0 0 0

Pre-tax income 479 255 (12) 722 100 (393) 429

Income tax charge (119) (75) 4 (190) (19) 127 (82)

Net gains/(losses) on discontinued 

operations
(4) (4) (4)

Net income for the period 360 176 (8) 528 81 (266) 343

Non-controlling interests (5) (1) 3 (3) (7) (10)

Net Income Group Share 355 175 (5) 525 74 (266) 333

30.06.2013

(1 )

(1 )

(1)

(1)

(1 )

 
 

(1) The issuer spread was reclassified from Capital markets and investment banking to the Corporate center, with an impact on net 
banking income of -€393m and in net income of -€258m. 
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€ million Financing

Capital markets 

and Invesrment 
banking

Discontinuing 
operations

Total Corporate 

and Investement 
Banking

Private Banking Corporate center Total

Net banking income 2,111 2,211 (201) 4,121 712 (772) 4,061

Operating expenses (936) (1,600) (294) (2,830) (508) (1) (3,339)

Gross operating income 1,175 611 (495) 1,291 204 (773) 722

Cost of risk (284) 1 (176) (459) (8) (467)

Operating income 891 612 (671) 832 196 (773) 255

Share of net income of equity-accounted 

entities
164 164 0 164

Net gains/(losses) on other assets 26 11 2 39 0 5 44

Change in value of goodwill (483) (483) (483)

Pre-tax income 1,081 140 (669) 552 196 (768) (20)

Income tax charge (298) (135) 240 (193) (37) 253 23

Net gains/(losses) on discontinued 

operations
(381) (381) (381)

Net income for the period 783 (376) (429) (22) 159 (515) (378)

Non-controlling interests (11) (6) 18 1 (12) (11)

Net Income Group Share 772 (382) (411) (21) 147 (515) (389)

31.12.2012 restated

(2) (2)

(2) (2 )

 
 

 (2) The issuer spread was reclassified from Capital markets and investment banking to the Corporate center, with an impact on net 
banking income of -€933m and in net income of -€612m. 

 
 

€ million Financing
Capital markets 
and Invesrment 

banking

Discontinuing 

operations

Total Corporate 
and Investement 

Banking

Private Banking Corporate center Total

Net banking income 1,115 1,157 (296) 1,976 346 225 2,547

Operating expenses (460) (812) (158) (1,430) (261) (1) (1,692)

Gross operating income 655 345 (454) 546 85 224 855

Cost of risk (111) (4) (94) (209) (4) (213)

Operating income 544 341 (548) 337 81 224 642

Share of net income of equity-accounted 

entities
80 80 0 80

Net gains/(losses) on other assets 1 11 12 0 4 16

Change in value of goodwill 0 0

Pre-tax income 625 352 (548) 429 81 228 738

Income tax charge (179) (100) 191 (88) (15) (81) (184)

Net gains/(losses) on discontinued 

operations
(172) (172) (172)

Net income for the period 446 80 (357) 169 66 147 382

Non-controlling interests (5) (3) 20 12 (5) 7

Net Income Group Share 441 77 (337) 181 61 147 389

30.06.2012 restated

(3 )

(3 )

(3 )

(3)

 
 

 
 

 (3) The issuer spread was reclassified from Capital markets and investment banking to the Corporate center, with an impact on net 
banking income of +€225m and in net income of +€147m. 
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���� Note 5 : Notes to the balance sheet 

 
5.1 Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
 
 

Structured issues, classified at 31 December 2012 in the accounting category Financial liabilities at fair value as held 
for trading, were reclassified as Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss for an amount of 
€32,661 million at 1 January 2013.xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 
These structured issues amounted to €32,010 million at 30 June 2013.xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 
 
The revaluation adjustments related to the issuer credit risk of the group are measured using models that reflect the 
refinancing conditions of the Group. They also take into account the residual term of the related liabilities. The 
revaluation of the stock of structured issues is based on the use of issue spreads in force on the date of financial 
statements closing.  
 
 

 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Financial assets held for trading 512,903 583,492

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 5 5

Book Value 512,908 583,497

Of which lent securities 668 435

Financial assets held for trading

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Loans and receivables to customers 
 (1) 103 253

Securities bought under repurchase agreements 107,184 83,978

Securities held for trading 53,422 47,567

      - Treasury bills and similar items 40,278 34,090

      - Bonds and other fixed-income securities
(2) 9,732 9,134

      - Equities and other equity variable-income securities
(3 ) 3,412 4,343

Derivative instruments 352,194 451,694

Book Value 512,903 583,492

(1) Including loans being syndicated.
(2) Including monetary mutual funds.
(3) Including equity mutual funds.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Securities designated  at fair value through profit or loss 5 5

     - Bonds and other fixed-income securities 
(1) 5 5

Book Value 5 5
(1) Including money-market and bond UCITS.  
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Financial liabilities held for trading 492,445 609,429

Financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss 32,010 0

Book Value 524,455 609,429

Financial liabilities held for trading

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Securities sold short 33,097 32,504

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 103,742 90,991

Debt securities 0 32,661

Derivative instruments 355,606 453,273

Book Value 492,445 609,429  
 
 
 
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value on 
balance sheet

Difference 
between book 

value and due at 
maturity

Fair value on 
balance sheet

Difference 
between book 

value and due at 
maturity

Debt securities 32,010 924 0

Book value 32,010 924 0 0

€ million

30.06.2013 31.12.2012

 
 
 
 

5.2 Available-for-sale financial assets 
 
 

Book value

Gains recognised 
in other 

comprehensive 

income

Losses recognised 
in other 

comprehensive 

income

Book value

Gains recognised 
in other 

comprehensive 

income

Losses recognised 
in other 

comprehensive 

income

Treasury bills and similar items 14,612 23 3 18,924 92 3

Bonds and other fixed-income securities 10,512 56 90 10,049 147 214

Equities and other equity variable-income securities 410 130 7 383 113 6

Non-consolidated equity investments 636 103 27 705 119 9

Available-for-sale receivables 0 0 0 23 0 0

Book value of available-for-sale financial assets (1) 26,170 312 127 30,084 471 232

Tax (49) (32) (105) (75)

Gains and losses on available-for-sale financial 

assets in other comprehensive income (net of tax)
263 95 366 157

(1) of which €138 million related to impaired available-for-sale fixed-income securities;

€639 million related to impaired available-for-sale variable-income securities;

No guarantees received on impaired outstandings;

No relevant item less than 90 days past-due;

€539 million in impairment of available-for-sale securities and receivables at 30 June 2013.

€ million

30.06.2013 31.12.2012
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5.3 Due from banks and loans and receivables due from customers 
 
 

Due from banks

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Banks

Loans and receivables 32,214 40,092

o/w Performing current accounts in debit 5,639 6,769

o/w Performing overnight time accounts and advances 8,086 17,271

Securities bought under repurchase agreements 25,004 25,626

Subordinated loans 43 45

Securities not traded in an active market 19 320

Other loans and receivables 50 66

Gross value 57,330 66,149

Impairment (548) (553)

Book value 56,782 65,596
 

 

Loans and receivables due from customers

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Customer items

Trade notes 10,367 11,081

Other customer loans 87,342 89,378

Securities bought under repurchase agreements 4,939 14,535

Subordinated loans 136 204

Securities not traded in an active market 4,500 5,188

Advances in associates current accounts 64 68

Current accounts in debit 7,502 5,548

Gross value 114,850 126,002

Impairment (3,563) (3,495)

Net value of customer items 111,287 122,507

Finance leases

Property leasing 1 1

Gross value 1 1

Impairment 0 0

Net value of lease financing operations 1 1

Book value 111,288 122,508  
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Loans and receivables due from banks and from customers by customer type 

Gross outstanding

o/w gross loans 

and receivables 

individually 

impaired

Individual 

impairment

Collective 

impairment
Total

Central governments 2,451 44 (43) (30) 2,378

Banks 49,261 808 (548) 48,713

Central banks 8,070 8,070

Institutions other than credit institutions 13,356 891 (520) (331) 12,505

Large corporates 93,309 2,463 (1,410) (1,172) 90,727

Retail customers 5,734 619 (54) (3) 5,677

Total loans and receivables due from banks and from 

customers*
172,181 4,825 (2,575) (1,536) 168,070

Gross outstanding

o/w gross loans 

and receivables 

individually 

impaired

Individual 

impairment

Collective 

impairment
Total

Central governments 2,748 52 (51) (28) 2,669

Banks 50,154 644 (553) - 49,601

Central banks 15,994 - - - 15,994

Institutions other than credit institutions 22,487 556 (351) (570) 21,566

Large corporates 94,914 2,760 (1,462) (979) 92,473

Retail customers 5,855 643 (54) - 5,801

Total loans and receivables due from banks and from 

customers*
192,152 4,655 (2,471) (1,577) 188,104

€ million

€ million

(*) including €923 million in restructured (unimpaired) performing loans

31.12.2012

(*) including €941 million in restructured (unimpared) performing loans

30.06.2013
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5.4 Transferred assets not derecognised or derecognised with ongoing 
involvement 
 
 
Transferred assets, but not fully derecognised at 30 June 2013 
 

 
 

Transferred assets, but not fully derecognised at 31 December 2012 
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5.5 Impairment deducted from financial assets 
 
 
 

€ million 31.12.2012
Changes in 

scope
Depreciation 

charges

Write-backs 
and 

utilisations

Translation 
adjustments

Transfers in 
non-current 
assets held 

for sale

Other 
movements

30.06.2013

Interbanks loans 553 0 2 (11) 4 0 548

Customer loans 3,495 (12) 248 (165) (5) 2 3,563

of which collective reserves 1,577 0 0 (38) (3) 0 1,536

Available-for-sale assets 533 18 59 (65) (5) 0 0 540

Other financial assets 26 0 5 (1) 0 0 0 30

Total impairment of financial assets 4,607 6 314 (242) (6) 0 2 4,681

€ million 31.12.2011
Changes in 

scope
Depreciation 

charges

Write-backs 
and 

utilisations

Translation 
adjustments

Transfers in 
non-current 
assets held 

for sale

Other 
movements

31.12.2012

Interbanks loans 564 - 10 (10) (11) - 553

Customer loans 4,023 (17) 568 (1,060) (44) 25 3,495

of which collective reserves 2,290 - - (694) (19) - 1,577

Available-for-sale assets 511 - 90 (60) (1) (8) 1 533

Other financial assets 29 - 5 (10) (2) (1) 5 26

Total impairment of financial assets 5,127 (17) 673 (1,140) (58) (9) 31 4,607

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 58



2 – Consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2013
 

 

 

 
5.6 Exposure to sovereign and non-sovereign risk in European countries 

under watch 
 
 
Given the economic climat confirming the difficulties that some countries in the Eurozone face in controlling their 
finances,  the exposure of Crédit Agricole CIB to some European countries is presented below:  
 
Exposure to sovereign risk in Greece, Ireland, Portugal, Italy, Spain, Cyprus and Hungary 
 
Exposures to sovereign risk on Cyprus and Hungary were immaterial at 31 December 2012 and 30 June 2013.  
 
The scope of the sovereign exposures recorded covers exposure to Government, but excludes local authorities. 
Exposure to sovereign debts corresponds to an exposure net of depreciation (book value) and disclosed gross and net 
of hedging. 

 

Banking activity 

 
 

Financial assets 

at fair value 

through profit or 

loss

Available-for-sale 

financial assets

Loans and 

receivables 
(1)

Greece 0 0

of which maturity before 2020

91 91 91

147 92 239 (1) 238

165 224 389 389

156 156 156

Total 0 238 165 472 875 (1) 874

(1)
 excluding deferred tax assets

Financial assets 

at fair value 

through profit or 

loss

Available-for-sale 

financial assets

Loans and 

receivables 
(1)

Greece

of which maturity before 2020

Ireland

Portugal

Italy

Spain

Total 0 242 169 135 546 546

(1)
 excluding deferred tax assets

216

96

Total banking 

activity 

net of hedging

173

Total banking 

activity 

gross of 

hedging

of which banking portfolio

of which banking portfolio

31.12.2012

Net exposures Banking activity

47

30.06.2013

Total banking 

activity 

net of hedging

0

Hedging

Available-for-

sale financial 

assets

17327

of which 

trading book 

(exluding 

derivatives)

Net exposures Banking activity

0 146

Hedging

Available-for-

sale financial 

assets

Total banking 

activity 

gross of 

hedging

of which 

trading book 

(exluding 

derivatives)

169 216

96 96

61 61

€ million

61

Ireland

Portugal

Italy

Spain

€ million
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Sovereign debts gross of hedging Banking activity – Maturity 

 

30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Before 2020

After 2020

Total Greece 0 0

One year 91

Two years 96

Three years

Five years

Ten years

Over ten years

Total Ireland 91 96

One year 147 146

Two years

Three years

Five years

Ten years

Over ten years

Total Portugal 147 146

One year 165 169

Two years

Three years

Five years

Ten years

Over ten years

Total Italy 165 169

One year

Two years

Three years

Five years

Ten years

Over ten years

Total Spain 0 0

Total Gross 

exposure
403 411

Residual 

maturity

Gross exposure

Portugal

Italy

Spain

€ million

Greece

Ireland
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Sovereign debts Banking activities - Changes  

 
Changes in exposure before hedging

€ million

Greece 0 0

Ireland 0 0

Portugal 0 0

Italy 0 0

Spain 0 0

Held-to-maturity financial assets -                  -            -                -          -           -                    -             -                   

Greece 0 0

Ireland 96 (2) (3) 91

Portugal 146 (2) 3 147

Italy 0 0

Spain 0 0

Available-for-sale financial assets 242 (4) 0 0 0 0 0 238

Greece 0 0

Ireland 0 0

Portugal 0 0

Italy 169 (4) 165

Spain 0 0

Loans and receivables 169 0 0 0 (4) 0 0 165

Greece 0 0

Ireland 0 0

Portugal 27 65 92

Italy 47 177 224

Spain 61 95 156

 Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss 
135 0 0 0 0 0 337 472

Total Banking Activity 546 (4) 0 0 (4) 0 337 875

Changes in exposure before hedging

€ million

Greece

Ireland 0

Portugal 0

Italy 0

Spain 0

Held-to-maturity financial assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Greece 0

Ireland 146 7 3 (50) (10) 96

Portugal 256 22 6 (138) 146

Italy 0

Spain 45 (45) 0

Available-for-sale financial assets 447 29 0 9 (233) (10) 0 242

Greece 0

Ireland 0

Portugal 0

Italy 192 (192) 169 169

Spain 0

Loans and receivables 192 0 0 0 0 (192) 169 169

Greece 0

Ireland 0

Portugal 8 (8) 27 27

Italy 128 (386) 305 47

Spain (75) 136 61

 Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss 
136 (8) 0 0 0 (461) 468 135

Total Banking Activity 775 21 0 9 (233) (663) 637 546

Outstanding at 

31.12.2011
Acquisitions

Outstanding at

31.12.2012

Accrued 

interest

Disposals net of 

reversals of 

provisions

Acquisitions
Outstanding at

30.06.2013

Disposals net of 

reversals of 

provisions

Outstanding at 

31.12.2012

Change in 

fair value 

Recycling of 

available-for-

sale reserves

Accrued 

interest
Payments

Payments
Change in 

fair value 

Recycling of 

available-for-

sale reserves
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Exposure to non-sovereign risk in Greece, Ireland, Portugal, Italy, Spain, Cyprus 

and Hungary 

 
Crédit Agricole CIB risk to non-sovereign risk in European countries under supervision is disclosed below. It involves 
portfolios of debt instruments and loans and receivables to customers and credit institutions. Exposures held for 
trading and off-balance sheet commitments are not included in this analysis. Breakdown by countries is by 
counterparty risk country. 
 

Banking activity - Credit risk 

 
31.12.2012

€ million
Gross 

outstanding loans

o/w impaired 

outstanding loans

Individual and 

collective 

impairment

Rate of 

provisioning of 

gross 

outstanding

Net outstanding 

loans

Net outstanding 

loans

Portugal

Banks 8 8 8

Retail customers 24 24 24

Corporate and Large corporate, excluding semi-public 139 (4) 2.88% 135 95

Corporate and Large corporate, semi-public

Local authorities

Total 171 (4) 2.34% 167 127

Italy

Banks 422 422 216

Retail customers 834 580 (1) 0.12% 833 748

Corporate and Large corporate, excluding semi-public 3,234 127 (160) 4.95% 3,074 3,480

Corporate and Large corporate, semi-public 3 3 3

Local authorities

Total 4,493 707 (161) 3.58% 4,332 4,447

Ireland

Banks 1

Retail customers 1 1 1

Corporate and Large corporate, excluding semi-public 296 11 (7) 2.36% 289 355

Corporate and Large corporate, semi-public

Local authorities

Total 297 11 (7) 2.36% 290 357

Spain

Banks 112 112 106

Retail customers 273 273 44

Corporate and Large corporate, excluding semi-public 4,091 304 (346) 8.46% 3,745 3,943

Corporate and Large corporate, semi-public

Local authorities 358 358 383

Total 4,834 304 (346) 7.16% 4,488 4,476

Greece (including Cyprus) 
(1)

Banks 42 42 65

Retail customers 69 69 67

Corporate and Large corporate, excluding semi-public 3,290 83 (160) 4.86% 3,130 3,062

Corporate and Large corporate, semi-public

Local authorities

Total 3,401 83 (160) 4.70% 3,241 3,194

Hungary

Banks 24

Retail customers 1 1 1

Corporate and Large corporate, excluding semi-public 260 260 211

Corporate and Large corporate, semi-public 11 11 26

Local authorities

Total 272 272 262

Total Exposure on Risky Countries - Credit Risk 13,468 1,105 (678) 5.03% 12,790 12,863

(1)
 of which €3,079 million at 30 June 2013 and €3,046 million at 31 December 2012 relating to shipping financings matched by mortgages on the financed ships, according to the business line 

practises.

30.06.2013
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Banking activity – Debt instruments 
 
The disclosed amounts include the book value of Available-for-sale financial assets and Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss. 
 
 

30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Net exposure of 

debt instruments

Net exposure of 

debt instruments

Portugal

Banks 3 3

Retail customers

Corporate and Large corporate, excluding semi-public 14

corporate and Large corporate, semi-public 92

Local authorities

Total 17 95

Italy

Banks 11 164

Retail customers

Corporate and Large corporate, excluding semi-public 138 167

corporate and Large corporate, semi-public

Local authorities

Total 149 331

Ireland

Banks

Retail customers

Corporate and Large corporate, excluding semi-public 2 4

corporate and Large corporate, semi-public

Local authorities

Total 2 4

Spain

Banks

Retail customers

Corporate and Large corporate, excluding semi-public 100 127

corporate and Large corporate, semi-public

Local authorities

Total 100 127

Greece (including Cyprus)

Banks

Retail customers

Corporate and Large corporate, excluding semi-public

corporate and Large corporate, semi-public

Local authorities

Total

Hungary

Banks

Retail customers

Corporate and Large corporate, excluding semi-public

corporate and Large corporate, semi-public

Local authorities

Total

Total Exposure on Risky Countries - Debt instruments  268 557

€ million
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5.7 Due to banks and to customer accounts 
 
 
Due to banks

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Accounts and deposits 46,160 43,919

  of which current accounts in credit 4,549 4,608

  of which overnight accounts and borrowings 5,888 4,397

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 20,864 14,841

Book value 67,024 58,760

Due to customers

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Current accounts in credit 44,607 36,272

Special savings accounts 151 161

Other amounts due to customers 65,613 72,905

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 6,297 11,823

Book value 116,668 121,161  
 

 

5.8 Debt securities and subordinated debt 
 

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Debt securities 

Interest-bearing notes 18 33

Negotiable debt securities 29,744 31,041

Bonds borrowings 1 1

Other debt securities 27 27

Book value 29,790 31,102

Subordinated debt

Fixed-term subordinated debt 711 1,245

Perpetual subordinated debt 4,868 4,725

Book value 5,579 5,970  
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5.9 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (excluding goodwill)  
 
 

€ million 31.12.2012

Transfers in 
non-current 

assets held for 
sale

Changes in 
scope

Increases 
(acquisitions, 

business 
combination)

Decreases
(disposals and 
redemptions)

Translation 
adjustment

Other 
movements

Closing 

balance at

30.06.2013

Property, plant and equipment

Gross value 1,352 2 0 35 (35) (15) (2) 1,337

Amortisation and impairment
(1 )

(886) (5) 0 (34) 24 7 1 (893)

Book value 466 (3) 0 1 (11) (8) (1) 444

Intangible assets

Gross value 560 (6) 3 49 (25) (1) 1 581

Depreciation and impairment (401) 2 (3) (22) 9 0 0 (415)

Book value 159 (4) 0 27 (16) (1) 1 166
(1) Including impairments on assets let to third parties.

€ million 31.12.2011

Transfers in 
non-current 

assets held for 
sale

Changes in 
scope

Increases 
(acquisitions, 

business 
combination)

Decreases
(disposals and 
redemptions)

Translation 
adjustment

Other 
movements

Closing 

balance at

31.12.2012

Property, plant and equipment

Gross value 1,681 (128) 51 75 (323) (6) 2 1,352

Amortisation and impairment
(1 )

(978) 79 (32) (96) 135 6 0 (886)

Book value 703 (49) 19 (21) (188) - 2 466

Intangible assets

Gross value 577 (73) 25 107 (74) (2) 0 560

Depreciation and impairment (406) 44 (22) (41) 22 2 0 (401)

Book value 171 (29) 3 66 (52) - - 159
(1) Including impairments on assets let to third parties.  
 
 

5.10 Reserves 
 
 
 

€ million 31.12.2012
Changes in 

scope

Depreciation 

charges

Write-backs, 

amounts 

used

Write-backs,

amounts 

released

Translation 

adjustment

Transfers in 

non-current 

assets held for 
sale

Other 

movements
30.06.2013

Financing commitment execution risks 18 0 2 0 (12) 0 (1) 7

Operational risks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Employee retirement and similar benefits 589 0 11 (12) (27) (3) 0 20 578

Litigation 653 0 28 (3) (8) (3) 0 (1) 666

Equity investments 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Restructuring 13 0 0 0 0 0 (11) 2

Other risks 84 0 14 (11) (10) (1) 0 1 77

Total 1,359 0 55 (26) (57) (7) 0 8 1,332

€ million 31.12.2011
Changes in 

scope

Depreciation 

charges

Write-backs, 
amounts 

used

Write-backs,
amounts 

released

Translation 

adjustment

Transfers in 
non-current 

assets held for 

sale

Other 

movements
31.12.2012

Financing commitment execution risks 20 0 10 (1) (11) 0 0 18

Operational risks 0 3 0 0 (1) 0 (2) 0

Employee retirement and similar benefits 638 1 21 (19) (124) (1) (53) 126 589

Litigation 620 8 200 (98) (47) (2) 0 (28) 653

Equity investments 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

Restructuring 10 1 4 (4) 0 0 2 13

Other risks 81 0 65 (42) (7) 1 (8) (6) 84

Total 1,369 13 302 (164) (190) (2) (61) 92 1,359  
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5.11 Shareholders’ equity  
 
 

Ownership structure at 30 June 2013

At 30 June 2013, breakdown of the Crédit Agricole CIB parent-company’s capital and voting rights was as follows:

Crédit Agricole CIB shareholders
Number of shares

at 30.06.2013

% of share 

capital

% of voting 

rights

Credit Agricole S.A. 261,514,762 97.33% 97.33%

SACAM Developpement 
(2)

5,992,478 2.23% 2.23%

Delfinances 
(1)

1,180,715 0.44% 0.44%

Individuals 18 ns ns

Total 268,687,973 100.00% 100.00%
(1) 

Owned by Crédit Agricole S.A.
(2) 

Owned by Crédit Agricole Group.

The par value of shares is €27. All the shares are fully paid up.

Preferred shares

Issuing entity Issue date
Issue amount

$ million

30.06.2013

€ million

31.12.2012

€ million

Crédit Agricole CIB Preferred Funding LLC déc-98 230 176 174

Crédit Agricole CIB Preferred Funding II LLC juin-02 320 244 243

550 420 417

Earnings per share

30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Net income (Group share) for the period (in million of euros) 333 (389)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period 268,687,973 260,345,518

Number of potentially dilutive shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate diluted earnings per share 268,687,973 260,345,518

Basic earnings per share (in euros) 1.24 (1.49)

Earnings per share of ongoing activities (in euros) 1.25 (0.03)

Earnings per share of discontinued activities (in euros) (0.01) (1.46)

Diluted earnings per share (in euros) 1.24 (1.49)

Diluted earnings of ongoing activities (in euros) 1.25 (0.03)

Diluted earnings of discontinued activities (in euros) (0.01) (1.46)

Dividends

Dividend paid in respect of year
Net amount 

in million euros

2006 2,049

2007 -

2008 -

2009 -

2010 955

2011 647

2012 -

For 2012, the Board of Directors did not propose any dividend payment to the approbation of the General Meeting of shareholders.  
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���� Note 6 : Financing and guarantee commitments and other 
guarantees 

 
Commitments given and received

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

COMMITMENTS GIVEN 174,085 159,529

Financing commitments 127,882 116,320

  . Commitments given to credit institutions 23,542 16,212

  . Commitments given to customers 104,340 100,108

Confirmed credit lines 86,193 86,354

 - Documentary credits 6,745 9,032

 - Other confirmed credit lines 79,448 77,322

Other commitments given to customers 18,147 13,754

Guarantee commitments 46,203 43,209

  . Credit institutions 8,988 7,089

Confirmed documentary credit lines 2,450 2,502

Other 6,538 4,587

  . Customers 37,215 36,120

Property guarantees 2,351 2,507

Other customer guarantees 34,864 33,613

COMMITMENTS RECEIVED 165,515 173,240

Financing commitments 52,965 51,135

  . Commitments received from credit institutions 40,165 31,303

  . Commitments received from customers 12,800 19,832

Guarantee commitments 112,550 122,105

  . Commitments received from credit institutions 7,991 10,985

  . Commitments received from customers 104,559 111,120

Guarantees received from government bodies or similar 17,700 19,610

Other guarantees received 86,859 91,510

Financial instruments given and received as collateral

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Book value of financial assets provided as collateral 

(including transferred assets)

Securities and receivables provided as collateral for the

refinancing structures (SFEF, Banque de France, CRH, etc.)
50,620 32,737

Securities lent 668 435

Security deposits on market transactions 44,333 33,803

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 130,903 117,655

Total Book value of financial assets provided as collateral 226,524 184,630

Fair value of instruments received as reusable and reused 

collateral

Securities borrowed 428 331

Securities bought under repurchase agreements 140,177 126,547

Securities sold short 32,670 32,173

Total Fair value of instruments received as reusable and 

reused collateral 173,275 159,051  
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Guarantees held 

 
The majority of the guarantees and enhancements held consist of mortgage lines, collateral or guarantees received, 
regardless of the quality of the assets guaranteed. 
 
Guarantees held and assets received as collateral by Crédit Agricole CIB Group which it is allowed to sell or to use as 
collateral amount to €173 billion at 30 June 2013 compared to €159 billion at 31 December 2012. They are mainly 
related to repurchase agreements and securities pledged to guarantee brokerage transactions. 
 
The policy of the Group is to sell seized collateral as soon as possible. Crédit Agricole CIB has no such assets, neither 
at 30 June 2013, nor at 31 December 2012. 
 

 
 
 
Receivables pledged as collateral 
 
During the first half of 2013, Crédit Agricole CIB deposited €1,908 million of receivables to support Crédit Agricole 
Group involvement in the financing granted by SFEF (Société de Financement de l’Economie Française), compared 
with €1,794 million in 2012. Crédit Agricole CIB keeps the integrity of risks and rewards related to these assets. 
 
Furthermore, during the first half of 2013, Crédit Agricole CIB brought €3,372 million of receivables to the Banque de 
France for refinancing. 
 
At 30 June 2013, Crédit Agricole CIB has used €2,021 million of financing granted by the Banque de France, which 
were guaranteed by these assets and by securities. 
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���� Note 7 : Reclassifications of financial instruments 

 

Principles applied by Crédit Agricole CIB  

 
Reclassifications from « financial assets held for trading » were decided then carried out in accordance with the 
conditions set out by the amendment to IAS 39 adopted by the European Union on 15 October 2008. They were 
recorded in their new accounting category at their fair value on the reclassification date. 
 

Reclassifications carried out by Crédit Agricole CIB 

 
Pursuant to the amendment to IAS 39 published and adopted by the European Union on 15 October 2008, Crédit 
Agricole CIB did not make any reclassification during the first half of 2013 as allowed by IAS 39 standard amendment. 
Information on previous reclassifications is provided below. 
 

� Type, reason and amount of reclassifications carried out 

 
Crédit Agricole CIB did not operate during the first half of 2013 reclassifications from the categories « Financial assets at 
fair value through profit and loss held for trading » towards the category « Loans and receivables » for the financial 
assets for which Crédit Agricole CIB changed management intent, which is now to keep these financial assets in a 
foreseeable future, and no longer to sell them in the short term. 
 
Reclassifications of previous financial years relate to syndication transactions or securitisation assets. 
 
For the assets previously reclassified and still in Crédit Agricole CIB assets at 30 June 2013, the table below displays 
their book value at closing date. 

 

 Total reclassified assets Assets reclassified at 30.06.2013 Assets previously ceclassified 

€ million 
Net book value at 

30/06/2013 

Estimated market 
value at  

30/06/2013 

Reclassification 
value 

 

Net book value 
at  30/06/2013 

Estimated 
market value at 

30/06/2013 

Net book  
value at 

30/06/2013 

Estimated 
market value at 

30/06/2013 

Net book value 
at 31/12/2012 

Estimated 
market value at 

31/12/2012 

Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss 
reclassified as loans and 
receivables 

4,405 4,178 - - - 4,405 4,178 4,872 4,556 

 

� Change in fair value of reclassified assets recognised in profit or loss 

 
The change in fair value recognised in profit and loss on assets reclassified during the half of 2013 is shown in the table 
below. 
Change in recognised fair value 

  Change in recognised fair value 

€ million 
In 2013, at the reclassification 

date In 2012 

Financial assets at fair value through profit  
or loss reclassified as loans and receivables - - 
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� Contribution of reclassified assets to net income since the reclassification date 

 
Analysis of the impact in Profit and loss of the transferred assets: 

 

€ million 

Impact on pre-tax income since reclassification date 

Assets reclassified in 2013 Assets previously reclassified 

Impact 30/06/2013 Cumulated impact 31/12/2012 Impact on first half 2013 Cumulated impact at 30/06/2013 

Actual income 
and expenses 

recognised 

If asset had been 
retained in its 

former category 
(change in fair 

value) 

Actual income 
and expenses 

recognised 

If asset had been 
retained in its 

former category 
(change in fair 

value) 

Actual income 
and expenses 

recognised 

If asset had been 
retained in its 

former category 
(change in fair 

value) 

Actual income and 
expenses 

recognised 

If asset had been 
retained in its 

former category 
(change in fair 

value) 

Financial assets at 
fair value through 
profit or loss 
reclassified as loans 
and receivables 

- - (171) (541) 18 124 (153) (417) 

 
  
 

���� Note 8 : Fair value of financial instruments 

 

The fair value is the price that would be received for the 
disposal of an asset or paid for the transfer of a liability for 
an arm’s length transaction between market participants at 
the valuation date.   
 
The fair values shown below are estimates made on the 
reporting date. They are subject to change in subsequent 
periods due to developments in market conditions or other 
factors. 
 
The calculations represent best estimates. They are based 
on a number of valuation models  and assumptions. 

To the extent that these models contain uncertainties, 
the fair values shown may not be achieved  upon 
actual sale or immediate settlement of the financial 
instruments concerned. 
 
In practice, and in line with the going-concern 
principle, not all these financial instruments would 
necessarily be settled immediately at the values 
estimated below. 

 

8.1 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost  

 
 
Amounts presented below include accruals and prepayments and are net of impairment. 
 

Assets

Due from banks 56,782 56,782 65,596 65,596

Loans and receivables due from customers 111,288 112,161 122,508 124,085

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Liabilities

Due to banks 67,024 67,024 58,760 58,761

Due to customers 116,668 116,668 121,161 121,161

Debt securities 29,790 29,796 31,102 31,114

Subordinated debts 5,579 5,579 5,970 5,970

€ million

30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Book value
Estimated 

market value
Book value

Estimated 

market value

(1)

 
 

(1) amount restated compared to the disclosure at 31 December 2012. 

 

For financial instruments that are traded in an active market (i.e. prices are quoted and disseminated), the best 
estimate of fair value is their market price.  
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In the absence of a market and of reliable data, fair value is determined using an appropriate method that is consistent 
with the valuation methods used in financial markets: market value of a comparable instrument, discounted future cash 
flows, or valuation models. 

Where it is necessary to assess market value, the discounted cash flow method is the most commonly used.  

In some cases, market values are close to carrying amounts. This applies primarily to: 

• assets or liabilities at variable rates for which interest rates changes do not have a significant influence on the 

fair value, since the rates on these instruments frequently correct themselves to the market rates; 

• short-term assets or liabilities where the  redemption value is considered to be close to the market 

value; 

• demand liabilities; 

• transactions for which there are no reliable observable data. 

 

8.2 Information on financial instruments measured at fair value  
 

Financial instruments measured at fair value broken down into the fair value hierarchy 

 
◆ Financial assets measured at fair value 

 

Given amounts include related receivables and are net of impairment charges.  
 
 

€ million
Total 

30.06.2013

Quoted prices in active 
markets for identical 

instruments :
Level 1

Valuation based on 
observable data :

Level 2

Valuation based on 
unobservable data : 

Level 3

Financial assets held for trading 512,903 53,202 457,883 1,818

Loans and receivables due from customers 103 103

Securities bought under repurchase agreement 107,184 107,184

Securities held for trading 53,422 52,197 1,210 15

    Treasury bills and similar securities 40,278 40,278

    Bonds and other fixed-income securities 9,732 8,579 1,138 15

    Equities and other equity variable-income securities 3,412 3,340 72

Derivative instruments 352,194 1,005 349,386 1,803

Equity 5,047 823 4,111 113

Forex 18,726 108 18,618

Commodities 104 13 91

Credits 7,830 6,755 1,075

Interest rates 320,487 61 319,811 615

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or 

loss 
5 5

Securities designated as at fair value through profit or loss 5 5

    Bonds and other fixed-income securities 5 5

Available-for-sale financial assets 26,170 24,270 1,900

    Treasury bills and similar securities 14,612 14,611 1

    Bonds and other fixed-income securities 10,512 9,342 1,170

    Equities and other equity variable-income securities 1,046 317 729

 Hedging derivative instruments 1,718 1,718

Total financial assets measured at fair value 540,796 77,472 461,506 1,818
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€ million
Total 

31.12.2012

Quoted prices in active 
active markets for 

identical instruments :
Level 1

Valuation based on 
observable data :

Level 2

Valuation based on 
unobservable data : 

Level 3

Financial assets held for trading 583,492 45,295 535,240 2,957

Loans and receivables due from customers 253 253

Securities bought under repurchase agreement 83,978 83,978

Securities held for trading 47,567 44,571 2,979 17

    Treasury bills and similar securities 34,090 34,083 7

    Bonds and other fixed-income securities 9,134 6,366 2,751 17

    Equities and other equity variable-income securities 4,343 4,122 221

Derivative financial instruments 451,694 724 448,030 2,940

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or 

loss
5 5

Securities designated as at fair value through profit or loss 5 5

    Bonds and other fixed-income securities 5 5

Available-for-sale financial assets 30,084 26,420 3,664

    Treasury bills and similar securities 18,924 18,922 2

    Bonds and other fixed-income securities 10,049 7,135 2,914

    Equities and other equity variable-income securities 1,088 363 725

    Receivables available for sale 23 23

Hedging derivative instruments 1,842 1,842

Total financial assets measured at fair value 615,423 71,715 540,751 2,957  
 
 
◆ Financial liabilities measured at fair value 

 
Given amounts include accrued interest.  

 
 

€ million
Total 

30.06.2013

Quoted prices in active 
active markets for 

identical instruments :
Level 1

Valuation based on 
observable data :

Level 2

Valuation based on 
unobservable data : 

Level 3

Financial liabilities held for trading 492,445 33,835 456,811 1,799

Securities sold short 33,097 32,998 99

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 103,742 103,742

Debt securities

Derivative instruments 355,606 837 352,970 1,799

Equity 5,325 831 4,364 130

Forex 17,606 1 17,605

Commodities 113 5 108

Credits 8,414 7,290 1,124

Interest rates 324,148 323,603 545

Financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or 

loss
32,010 32,010

Hedging derivative instruments 1,071 1,071

Total financial liabilities measured at fair value 525,526 33,835 489,892 1,799
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€ million
Total 

31.12.2012

Quoted prices in active 
markets fo r identical 

instruments :
Level 1

Valuation based on 
observable data :

Level 2

Valuation based on 
unobservable data : 

Level 3

Financial liabilities held for trading 609,429 29,715 576,937 2,777

Securities sold short 32,504 28,492 4,012

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 90,991 90,991

Debt securities 
(1) 32,661 32,661

Derivative instruments 453,273 1,223 449,273 2,777

Financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or 

loss

Hedging derivative instruments 1,063 1,063

Total financial liabilities measured at fair value 610,492 29,715 578,000 2,777  
(1) Contrary to the disclosure at 31 December 2012, all the Debt securities are recognised at fair value are classified at level 2. 

 
 

Change in valuation models  

No significant modification of valuation models was made during the first half of 2013.  
No material transfers between level 1 and 2 or 2 and 3 were made on the period. 
 
 

Financial instruments valued on level 3 model  

At 30 june 2013, the financial instruments of which valuation is based on non observable data (level 3) mainly include : 
 
� CDO products based on credit risk of corporates (correlation activities) 
� Interest rates derivatives products 
� to a lesser extent, equity derivatives 
 
 

Valuation method 

� Corporate CDOs are valued using a pricing model, which allocates expected losses according to the level of 
subordination of each transaction. This model uses both observable data (credit default swap spreads) and data 
that became much less observable since 2008 (correlation data relating to CDOs based on a standard basket of 
corporates). Crédit Agricole CIB adjusted its model to take this factor into account and updates regularly. More 
specifically, on the least liquid senior tranches, Crédit Agricole CIB introduced valuation factors adjusted to its 
assessment of the intrinsic risk of its exposures.  

 
� The valuation of interest rate structured derivatives is sensitive to multiple correlation parameters.  

The stock of continuing products, however, is primarily exposed to the following correlations: 
1. Correlation rate / foreign exchange rate on hybrids and long-term foreign exchange products 
2. Correlation rate / rate
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◆ Movements of net financial instruments at fair value according to level 3 
 
 
Financial assets measured at fair value on level 3  
 

Total 
Securities 
held for 
trading

Treasury bills 

and similar 

items

Bonds and 

other fixed 

income 

securities

Equities and 

other variable 

income 

securities

Derivative 
financial 

instruments

Equities Credit Interest rates

Opening balance (01.01.2013) 2,957 17 - 17 - 2,940 97 1,784 1,059

    Gains or losses  
(1) (591) (2) - (2) - (589) 5 (487) (107)

Accounted in profit and loss (591) (2) (2) (589) 5 (487) (107)

Accounted in other comprehsensive 

income
- - 

Purchases 21 - 21 18 2

Sales (27) - (27) (27)

Issues - - 

Settlements (508) - (508) (4) (197) (307)

Transfers (34) - - - - (34) (4) - (30)

     Transfers to level 3 - - 

     Transfers out of level 3 (34) - (34) (4) (30)

Closing balance (30.06.2013) 1,818 15 - 15 - 1,803 112 1,075 615

€ million

(1) Gains and losses from financial assets on the statement of financial position at the closing date amounted to -€662 million.
   Gains and losses on financial instruments held for trading are recorded in the income statement under « Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss ».

Financial assets held for trading

 
 
 
Financial liabilities measured at fair value on level 3  

 
 

Total 
Securities 
sold short

Securities 
sold under 
repurchase 
agreements

Debt 
securities

Due to 
customers

Due to banks
Derivative 
financial 

instruments

Equities Credit
Interest 

rates

Opening balance (01.01.2013) 2,777 - - - - - 2,777 299 1,847 629

    Gains or losses (1) (669) - - - - - (669) (78) (505) (86)

Accounted in profit and loss (669) (669) (78) (505) (86)

Accounted in other comprehsensive 

income
- 

Purchases 77 77 2 2 73

Sales (28) (28) (2) (26)

Issues - 

Settlements (255) (255) (44) (194) (15)

Transfers (103) - - - - - (103) (47) - (56)

     Transfers to level 3 - 

     Transfers out of level 3 (103) (103) (47) (56)

Closing balance (30.06.2013) 1,799 - - - - - 1,799 130 1,124 545

€ million 

(1) Gains and losses from financial liabilities on the statement of financial position at the closing date amounted to +€493 million.

    Gains and losses on financial instruments held for trading are recorded in the income statement under « Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss ».

Financial liabilities held for trading

 
 
 
The net change in fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair value based on level 3 amounts in the first half 
of 2013 to -€163 million, breaking down as follows: 

 
 
- A change in gains and losses for the period of €78 million relating primarily to a decrease in the value of 

liabilities of equity derivatives 
- Net purchases of -€56 million, of which -€73 million on the current activity of Cross Asset (rate / exchange rate, 

rate / credit and rate / equity) for interest rate derivatives 
- The net outcomes for -€254 million, primarily on interest rate derivatives for an amount of -€307 million as part 

of the deleveraging plan of discontinuing rates activities  
- The net transfers of financial instruments out of Level 3 for an amount of approximately €69 million. Such 

transfers resulted primarily from the effect of the passage of time, the arrival of the maturity of certain 
parameters in observability horizons. 

 
However, the fair value alone (and the related change) of these instruments is not relevant. Indeed, these products 
are extensively hedged by other, less complex products, which are individually valued based on data deemed to be 
observable. The valuation of these hedging products (and the related changes), which to a large extent is 
symmetrical to the valuation of products measured on the basis of data deemed to be unobservable, does not appear 
in the table above. 
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Sensitivity analysis for financial instruments measured using level 3 valuation techniques 
 
At 30 June 2013, the sensitivity to the parameters used in the models according to alternative reasonable 
assumptions amounts to -€8 million (dealing with the discontinuing activities): -€2 million on CDOs with U.S. 
residential underlyings, -€0,7 million on global equity derivatives activities,  -€5 million on exotic interest rate 
derivatives. 
 
Sensitivity is calibrated independently of the front office, based primarily on consensus data: 

• Super senior ABS CDO tranches: the extent of uncertainty is estimated based on a set rate (10% change in 
loss scenarios); 

• Equity derivatives: the extent of uncertainty is determined based on the standard deviation compared to 
consensus data, a shock on the dividend volatility parameters and standard correlation;  

• Rates derivatives: a shock of 2% is applied to the correlations between forex, rates, equities parameters.  

 
 

8.3 Measurement of the impact of taking into account day-one gain 
 
 

€ million 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Deferred margin at January, 1st 102 162

  Deferred margin generated by new transactions during the period 10 32

  Recognised in income during the period

    Amortisation and cancelled/reimbursed/matured transactions (35) (92)

    Effect of parameters or products that became observable during the period

Deferred margin at the end of the period 77 102  
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���� Note 9 : Events after the reporting period 

 
 

Disposal of CLSA on 31 July 2013 
 
 
As the regulatory approvals required for the transaction have been obtained, the transaction was finalised on 31 July 
2013, making CLSA a 100% subsidiary of CITICS. 
 
Due to a change in the scope of assets and businesses in CLSA, the net purchase consideration that Crédit Agricole 
CIB received on completion of this acquisition that relates on 80.1% of the capital amounts to $842 million, subject 
to adjustments in accordance with contractual terms with reference to the completion accounts of CLSA when these 
become available. CLSA’s current business in Taiwan, which is not material to the overall business of CLSA as a whole, 
is excluded from this acquisition to comply with local regulation. 
 
The Taiwanese business of CLSA will be retained by Crédit Agricole CIB. CITICS and Crédit Agricole CIB have agreed 
that, as and when any future changes in the relevant laws and regulations in Taiwan permit, CLSA has the right to 
repurchase the CLSA Taiwan business from Crédit Agricole CIB within a period of two years. 
 
CLSA’s sale (including the 19.9% already sold on 20 July 2012) totally amounts to $1,152 million(*). 
 
The final effects of the transaction will be included in the consolidated financial statements of Crédit Agricole CIB in 
the second half of 2013. 
 
 
 

(*) excluding Taiwanese business 
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���� Note 10 : Scope of consolidation at 30 june 2013 
 
The scope of consolidation at 30 June 2013 is detailed as follows : 

 

 

 

Country
Scope 

evolution
Method

at

(a) 30/06/2013 30/06/2013 31/12/2012 30/06/2013 31/12/2012

Parent company
Crédit Agricole CIB SA France parent 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Banks and financial institutions

Banco Crédit Agricole Brasil SA Brazil full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00
Banque Saudi Fransi - BSF Saudi Arabia equity 31.11           31.11 31.11           31.11

Crédit Agricole CIB Algérie Algeria full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Australia Limited Australia full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB China Limited China full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Merchant Bank Asia Ltd Singapore S1 full -                100.00 -                100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Services Private Limited India full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB ZAO Russia Russia full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole Luxembourg Luxemburg full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole Suisse Sw itzerland full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00
Crédit Agricole Suisse (Bahamas) Bahamas full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Foncier de Monaco Monaco full 70.13           70.13 68.95           68.95

Finanziaria Indosuez International Ltd Sw itzerland full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

New edge (groupe) France proportional 50.00           50.00 50.00           50.00

UBAF France proportional 47.01           47.01 47.01           47.01

CA Indosuez Private Banking France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00
CA Indosuez Gestion France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Brokerage activities

CLSA B.V. groupe Netherlands full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit  Agricole Cheuvreux North America, Inc United States S2 full -                100.00 -                100.00

Crédit  Agricole Securities (USA) Inc United States full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole Cheuvreux Espana S.A. Spain S2 full -                100.00 -                100.00

Crédit Agricole Cheuvreux International Ltd United Kingdom S2 full -                100.00 -                100.00

Crédit Agricole Cheuvreux Nordic AB SB Sw eden S2 full -                100.00 -                100.00
Crédit Agricole Cheuvreux S.A. France S2 full -                100.00 -                100.00

Crédit Agricole Van Moer Courtens Belgium S4 full -                92.20 -                92.20

CLSA Americas LLC United States E2 full 100.00         -                100.00         -             

Investment companies

Compagnie Française de l'Asie (CFA) France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Air Finance SA France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole Securities Asia BV Netherlands D2 full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Global Partners Inc.(groupe) United States full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Holdings Limited United Kingdom full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00
Crédit Agricole Private Banking France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole Securities Asia BV (Tokyo) Japan D2 full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Doumer Finance SAS France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Fininvest France full 98.31           98.31 98.31           98.31

Fletirec (groupe) France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

IPFO France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Insurance
CAIRS Assurance SA France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Subsidiaries, joint-ventures and associates % of control % of interest
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Country
Scope 

evolution
Method

at

(a) 30/06/2013 30/06/2013 31/12/2012 30/06/2013 31/12/2012

Other

CA Brasil DTVM Brazil full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

CA Conseil SA Luxemburg full 99.99           99.99 99.99           99.99

Calixis Finance France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Calliope srl Italy full 100.00         100.00 67.00           67.00
Calyce PLC United Kingdom full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

CLIFAP France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

CLINFIM France S3 full -                100.00 -                100.00

Crédit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Ltd Hong Kong full 99.99           99.99 99.99           99.99

Crédit Agricole CIB Finance Guernesey Ltd United Kingdom full 99.90           99.90 99.90           99.90

Crédit Agricole CIB Financial Products Guernesey Ltd United Kingdom full 99.90           99.90 99.90           99.90

Crédit Agricole CIB Financial Solutions France full 99.76           99.76 99.76           99.76

Crédit Agricole CIB Global Banking France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00
Crédit Agricole CIB Preferred Funding II LLC United States full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Preferred Funding LLC United States full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

DGAD International SARL Luxemburg full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Ester Finance Titrisation France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

European NPL S.A. Luxemburg full 60.00           60.00 67.00           67.00

Semeru Asia Equity High Yield Fund Singapore D2 full 64.85           74.76 64.85           74.76

Himalia PLC United Kingdom full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Immobilière Sirius SA Luxemburg full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00
Indosuez Holding SCA II Luxemburg full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Indosuez Management Luxembourg II Luxemburg full 100.00         100.00 99.99           99.99

Island Ref inancing Srl Italy full 100.00         100.00 67.00           67.00

LSF Italian Finance Company SRL Italy S3 full -                100.00 -                67.00

MERISMA France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

Sagrantino BV Netherlands full 100.00         100.00 67.00           67.00

Sagrantino Italy srl Italy full 100.00         100.00 67.00           67.00

SNC Doumer France full 99.94           99.94 99.94           99.94

SCI La Baume France full 100.00         100.00 100.00         100.00

% of control % of interestSubsidiaries, joint-ventures and associates

 
 

 
(a) Entrance (E) in the scope   :
E 1 Threshold crossing
E 2 Creation
E 3 Acquisition (including gain of control)

Exit (S) of scope  :
S 1 Business ending (dissolution, selling off)
S 2 Companies disposal outside the Group or loss of control
S 3 Entities out of consolidation scope for being "not significant"
S 4 Merger
S 5 Transfer of all assets and liabilities

Other
D 1 Change in the consolidation method
D 2 Change of corporate's name

Main external transactions realised over the period
none  
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Statutory auditors’ report 
on the condensed interim 
consolidated financial statements 
  
 
 
 
1 January 2013 to 30 June 2013 
 
 
To the Shareholders, 
 
In compliance with the assignment untrusted to us by your Shareholders’ Meeting, and as required by article           
L. 451 -1 -2 III of the French Monetary and Financial Code, we have: 
 
• reviewed the accompanying condensed interim Consolidated financial statements of Crédit Agricole Corporate and 
Investment Bank for the six months ended 30 June 2013 as attached to this report ; 
• verified the information contained in the interim management report. 
 
Those condensed interim financial statements were established under the responsibility of the Board of Directors. It is 
our responsibility, based on our limited review, to assert our opinion on the financial statements. 
 

1. Opinion on the financial statements 
 

We conducted our review in accordance with the professional standards applicable in France. A review consists of 
making enquiries, primarily of senior management members responsible for financial and accounting matters, and 
applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in 
accordance with the professional standards applicable in France and therefore provides less assurance than an audit 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
 
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention giving us cause to believe that the condensed interim 
Consolidated financial statements are not presented fairly in ail material respects in accordance with IAS 34 – Interim 
Financial Reporting, as adopted by the European Union. 
 
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw your attention to the matter set out in Note 1 to the interim condensed 
consolidated financial statements which describes, in particular, the effects of the first application of IFRS 13 related 
to fair value measurement. 
 

2.   Specific verification 
 
We have also verified the information provided in the interim management report accompanying the condensed 
interim financial statements reviewed by us. 
 
We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and consistency with the condensed interim Consolidated 
financial statements. 

 
 
Neuilly-sur-Seine and Paris-La Défense, 9 August 2013 
 
 
 

Statutory Auditors 
 
 
 
    PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit       ERNST & YOUNG et Autres 
Catherine Pariset Emmanuel Benoist      Valérie Meeus Hassan Baaj 

This is a free translation into English of the Statutory Auditors’ report issued in French and is provided solely for the 
convenience of English speaking readers. 
 
This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional 
auditing standards applicable in France.  
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                         Additional 
information 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ratings 

 

Ratings Standard & Poors Moody's FitchRatings 

Long-term senior unsecured debt 

 
A A2 A 

Outlook Negative Stable Stable 

Last rating action  20/06/2013 01/03/2013 26/07/2013 

Rating action type 

LT and ST ratings 

affirmed ;  

LT rating outlook 

unchanged 

LT rating affirmed ; 

Outlook changed to 

stable ; 

ST rating affirmed. 

LT/ST ratings affirmed; 

stable LT rating outlook 

unchanged 

Short-term debt A-1 Prime-1 F1 
 
 

Other information regarding the recent evolution of the bank 
 

Executive management members at 30 June 2013 

 

Composition unchanged at 30 June 2013 
 

Chief Executive Officer: 
Jean-Yves Hocher, 
 

Deputy Chief Executive Officers: 
Pierre Cambefort  
Régis Monfort 
 

Change in the composition in August 2013 
 

Mr Pierre Cambefort will quit his function as deputy chief executive officer to handle other tasks within 
Crédit Agricole Group. 
 
From the 26th August 2013, the composition of the executive management will be as follow: 

 
Chief Executive Officer: 
Jean-Yves Hocher, 

 

Deputy Chief Executive Officers: 
Paul de Leusse  
Régis Monfront 
Jacques Prost. 
 
 

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 81



3 – Additional information
 

 
 
 

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 82



 

 

 

 
4  General information 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Person responsible for the update of the shelf-registration document and                                           
for auditing the accounts   ...................................................................          84 
� Responsibility statement ........................................................................... 84 
� Statutory auditors ...................................................................................... 85 

 
 
 
 
Cross-reference table…… ....................................................................... 86 

 

 
 

Update of 2012 shelf-registration document of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB 83



4 – General information
 

 

Person responsible for  
the update of the shelf-registration 
document and for auditing  
the accounts 
 

 
 
 

� RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
 

I hereby certify that, to my knowledge and after all due diligence, the information contained in this update to the 2012 

shelf-registration document is true and accurate and contains no omissions likely to affect the import thereof. 

To the best of my knowledge, the condensed interim financial statements for the first half of 2013 have been prepared in 

accordance with the applicable accounting standards and give a true and a fair view of the assets and financial position of the 

company and the group of companies included in the consolidation for the first six months of the financial year and of the 

results for the period then ended, and the interim review of business operations on page 3 accurately depicts important 

events that arose during that period, their effect on the interim financial statements and the main related party transactions, 

as well as a description of the main risks and uncertainties anticipated during the second half of the financial year. 

I have obtained a letter from the statutory auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit and Ernst & Young et Autres, upon completion 

of their work in which they state that they have verified the information relating to the financial situation and financial 

statements provided in this update of shelf-registration document and read the update of the shelf-registration as a whole. 

The financial information presented in this document has been examined in an auditor's report containing an observation, 

appearing on page 79 of this document. 

Courbevoie, 12 August 2013 

The Chief Executive Officer of Crédit Agricole CIB 

 Jean-Yves Hocher 
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� Statutory auditors 
 
 
 

 
 

Ernst & Young et Autres 
Member of the Ernst & Young network 
Member of the Versailles régional 
association of statutary auditors  

Primary statutory auditors 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit 
Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers network 
Member of the Versailles régional  
association of statutory auditors 

Company represented by: Valérie Meeus and Hassan  
Baaj 

Head office : 
1-2 Place des saisons 
92400 Courbevoie – Paris-La Défense 

Company represented by: Catherine Pariset and Emmanuel 
Benoist 

Head office : 
63 Rue de Villiers 
92200 Neuilly Sur Seine 

 
 
 

Alternate statutory auditors 

Picarle et Associés M. Etienne Boris 

Member of the Versailles régional 
association of statutory auditors 

Company represented by : 
Marc Charles 

Head office : 
1-2 Place des saisons 
92400 Courbevoie – Paris-La Défense 

Member of the Versailles régional association of statutory 
auditors 
 

 
 
 
63 Rue de Villiers 
92208 Neuilly Sur Seine Cedex 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        Length of statutory auditors’ mandates 

Ernst & Young et Autres was renewed statutory Auditor 
for six financial periods by the shareholders’ meeting of 
9 May 2012. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit was renewed Statutory 
Auditor for six financial periods by the shareholders’ 
meeting of 9 May 2012. 

 
 
 

         Lengh of alternate auditors’ mandates 

Picarle et Associés mandate as alternate auditors to 
Ernst & Young et Autres was renewed for a period of six 
financial periods by the shareholders’ meeting of 9 May 
2012. 

Pierre Coll mandate as Alternate Auditor to 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit expired during the 
shareholders’ meeting of 9 May 2012. 

Mr Etienne Boris has been appointed Alternate Auditor to 
PricewaterhouseCoopers for a period of six financial 
periods by the shareholders’ meeting of 9 May 2012.
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Cross-reference table : 
The following table indicates the page references corresponding to the main information headings required by 

regulation EC 809/2004 enacting the terms of the « Prospectus » Directive. 

 

Headings required by regulation EC°809/2004 (Appendix XI) 
Page 

number of 
this 

document 

Page number 
of the shelf-
registration 
document 

 
1.   Person responsible 

2.   Statutory auditors 

3.   Risk factors 
 

 
 
 
4.   Information about the issuer 

4.1    History and development of the issuer 
 

 
5.   Business overview 

5.1    Principal activities 

5.1.3 Principal markets 
 

6.   Organisational structure 
6.1    Brief description of the group and the issuer’s position within the group 

6.2    Dependence relationships within the Group 
 

7.   Recent trends 

8.   Profit forecasts or estimates  

9.   Administrative, management and supervisory bodies 
9.1    Information concerning members of the administrative and management 
bodies 

9.2    Conflicts of interest in the administrative, management and supervisory 
bodies 

 

10. Major shareholders 

11. Financial information concerning the issuer’s assets and 
liabilities, financial position and profits and losses 
11.1  Historical financial information(1)

 

11.2  Financial statements 
 

11.3  Auditing for historical annual financial statements 
 

11.4  Dates of the most recent financial disclosures 
11.5  Interim financial information 
11.6  Legal and arbitration proceedings  
11.7  Significant change in the issuer’s financial or commercial position 

 

12. Material contracts  

13. Third party information and statements by experts and 
declarations of any interest 

14. Documents on display 

 
84 

85 

     14 to 24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

           41 

          25 
 

 
             
 
             81 
 
             
 

              
              66 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

     27 to 79 
23-24 

 
289 

290 

 111 to 137 

 186 to 196 

221 
 

 
    10 to 12 
 
 
 
    14 to 18 
    14 to 18 
 

13 
      2 to 3 

161 
                104 

N/A 
  48 to 57 
    70 to 91 

 
92 

       
      221 

 

 

  159 to 278 
  159 to 240; 
  243 to 278 
  241 to 242 
  279 to 280 

159 
N/A 

   136-137; 282 

282 
 

282 
 

 
N/A 

283 
(1) In accordance with article 28 of EC regulation 809/2004 and article 212-11 of AMF’s general regulations, the following are incorporated for 

reference purposes : the consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2012, the statutory auditors’ report on the 
consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2012, the 2012 Business review and financial information, and the Risk 
factors respectively presented on pages 159 to 242, 93 to 109 and 112 to 137 of Crédit Agricole CIB’s 2012 shelf-registration document 
registered by AMF on 18 March 2013 under the number D.13-0169 and available on the Crédit Agricole CIB website (www.ca-cib.com). 
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This update of the 2012 shelf-registration document is available on 
the Crédit Agricole CIB website : www.ca-cib.com 

 

 

9, quai du Président Paul Doumer 
92 920 Paris La Défense Cedex 

 

Tel : +33 (0)1 41 89 00 00 
www.ca-cib.com 
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